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AL
ALL
NOX 200.30 206.10 178.76
VOC 303415 2.593.25 2.047.18
SO, 41.89 1212 48.82
10,000 659.47 640,61 612.35
10,000 30653 255,37 219.01
cop 362.10 363.40 31957
71558 590.25 206.42
3185 32.68 28.86
1 2
10,000 168.76 147.15 117.54
1 10,000 39.69 32,82 27.37
2 10,000 129.07 114.33 90.38
10,000
10,000 0.042 0.042 0.032
0.701 0.731 0.626
AL3
33.683.65 28.606.47 26.267.045
7.793.27 14.601.83 18.825.39
10,000 10,000 0.87 0.59 0.56
AL
23.607.60 26.312.25 16.008.65
49522155 434.330.55 206,016.58
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95 85 91
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Bl
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18422 18.667 19.001
20,555 28,618 20,788
112,029 107,491 104,239
6.451 2,403 3,090
908 830 1,063
73.802 70,956 69.861
75,508 41804 39,460
% 7 441 429
97,794 92.213 88,561
21,626 20547 20,769
29 27.916 20,970 21.331
30 39 78,683 47,962 76,922
20 49 27.708 26.219 25164
50 15113 17.600 15.013
6,029 7,667 8313
67,929 63,715 59,863
74,562 41378 41154

B12
% 9.46 | 8.69 | .75
% 976 883 231
% 8.05 8.08 9.38
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56.10 79.83 67.35
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2.7 14.8 7.7 31.48
1.6 3.45 2.03 0.31 3.5 6.0
4.56 432,260 207
161 66.74 33.26
27.59
2024 12 31 312 87.2
3.8 13.99 6.92 12.8 5.0
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P/S
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Lc

“Year anded 31 Decomber 2024

2024 2023
Nelas BMEB million BME rrllic
(Restatod)
Bevenia 5 106,197 89,383
Cost of sales {92,612) {B9,550)
Gross profi 13,585 9,533
Other income and gains 3] T016 4,181
Salkng and distribulion expanses (2,418) (8,301}
Administrative expensas 8,152) {5,395)
Impairment lozsas on financial ascets L] (631) {1.144)
Othar puponsas [5,832) {5,B01)
Finance expenses 7 (837} 1,113
Share of prafits anag losses ol 1,107 1,321
Joing veniures 19 436 514
Associates 20 &7 Bo7
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX ] [1,163) {8,238)
Ircome tax oxpense 11 158) (485}
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1,222) {8,703}
Artributable fo:
Chwriars of the parant 58 {3,887}
Man-controlling intarasts (1,280) {2.816)

(1,222) 16,703)

Earnings/(Loss] per share altributatile to ordinary equiity
hotders of the parent 3

Bale arsd dilutad for prefit/ons) for tha year AMBO.70 cents  RME (45.68) conls

2024 Annual Report 99
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Yaar ended 31 Decamber 2024
2024 2023
Netes RMB million BME rmillian
(Restated|
LOSS FOR THE YEAR [1.222) {6,703}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Othar comprohansive oo Bral Wil mal be reclagsifiad
fo profil or Joss in SUbSeqUent Denods:
Changes in fei value of fnencial assats af fair valus
ihreugh other comprehensie income 2,882) 5,288
Othars 165) 38
(3.927) 5326
Other comprahansive income thal may be reclassified

fo profit or ioss i subsequent penods:

Curmency transtaton diferences (18) 14
Incovna tax affect

Nam that will not be reclassshied subsaquently to prafit

of [oss 73 {1,478}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INGOME FOR THE YEAR,

NET OF TAX [2.973) 4,462
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR [4,198) {2,241}
Attributable too

Crwnars of the parent (2,883) 55T

Mon-cantrolling interasts [1,302) {2,798}

4,198) {2241}

100 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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31 Decamber 2024 31 December 2023

Netos RMB million FME rmillian
(Restated)
Han-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 28,588 24,944
rveissdrmint proor ties 15 4,228 4,344
RighT=cd=use assers 16 4,853 4,796
Goodwil 18 3,165 3,155
Intangile assols 17 14,129 10,531
Irdegimanis in jeind viniures 19 36,011 az B4
IreRstmants in Azsociatas 20 16,402 16,611
Financial aseets at fair valug through othar comprohenshe
inceme 27 5,085 8,208
Othar nan-current assets 21 31,906 37450
Daforrod tax ansis 1 5,572 5,154
Total nen-curmont assets 148,899 154,784
Current assets
Irventaries 22 15,311 14,432
Trade recuivanias 23 12412 B7T4
Bills receivabla 24 4,798 7,304
Duse from point ventures 26 1,308 1,280
Prepayments, deposits and other recelvanies 25 40,282 40,516
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehenshag
InCome 27 #4135 9 248
Financial assets at lair value through proft or loss 20 16,678 16,568
Pledged bank balances and time deposits 26 A 414 4,150
Cash ang bark deposits 28 75,853 79,355
Total curren? gssets 175,153 181,636
TOTAL ASSETS 325,052 336,430

2024 Annual Report 101

180/327



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E5974)
Oooooood

31 Decamber 2024 31 December 2023

Melos RMB millfon AME milion
Current liabilities
Trade payables 35 26,505 27,164
Bills payable 38 30,005 29,534
Othar payabiles and acoruals a7 20,704 18,505
Cantract hab@dnes 3,694 4,318
Doy 1 jesint vanunis 26 24,556 20,513
Irterest-baaring bank and othar borrewings. 32 36,056 34,454
Loass llabities 16 21 332
Ircome fax payakie 229 1,508
Provigicns 33 847 1,012
Tertal gurrent lisblitios 143,007 137,341
HET CURREMT ASSETS 32,146 44,296

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 182,045 189,080

102 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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Nolos BMB miltion AME rmilian
Han-current liabilitios
Intatost-baadng bank and other borowings 32 18,597 28,518
Lense liabdities 186 1,040 1,836
Othar long term labdlies 2,208 2.188
Govarnmint grants 34 1.5_33 Z,188
Doforrod tax iakdiflas 1 678 1,881
Prenisions 33 1,885 1,942
Taital nea-curmant labilites 27,248 38373
Mot asss 154,787 160,716
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
imsued capital 30 8,253 8,302
Reservas 31 23,848 27897
Treasury sharag 30 - T8}
Fatained profts 117,188 117,762
Toslad wously aliibulsble 1o ownets of U panenl 148,200 153,883
Mon-cantrolling interesis 5,507 6,833
TOTAL EQUITY 154,797 160,716
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 325,052 338,430

Yang Qing You Zheng
Dirgc fiw Deercifon

2024 Annual Report 103
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Attritariable to owners of the company
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Attrbadabla 10 cwnens ol e cospary
Mo
fssnd Captal  Treasury  Swutory  Fekaned conroling
cipddl  resene’ thires  imbbrves” oty Tetd  mleesels oo eguily

AEmior RAEsln  AAEmFor AEmlvn Qe AEnEe D@ ndy  AWE o
A Rl Feted  Reaned  Sestaned

At 1 Doctmber 2022 BEtE X0 e Wi oM R eL 1BEE
Poclubairl For bumsiensgy Comismalion
O ConYRon contril - e - - a0 1,185 il 1,05

A3 Dhecamber 3097 andt 1 January

023 an rastabed] BEH B3t s Hrna 122,450 157,087 9,75 168,742
Tkl coimprohansra o kof thé et - 40 - - aEn BAT Q.78 @2
‘Shates repurthased = - =] - = =] - fe)
Ehares cancilation @y =] 98 - - - - -
Firal 20122 dvictre decired B - . - @ 1E {2,765 - 2,768
Divichras paid o non-continling
gty holgers - - - - - - [0 =1
Trensactions wih noe-toroling sty

Bk - 3 - iy - 17 2 40
Share-besid payment - 3 - - - k1] 8 B
Tt from capstal resere Upon on

dheposal ol pquily nvistsants al bar

whive pigh dher comprehensha

Inzome - {1.2%7] - - 1957 - - -
At 3t Decemiey 2023s rExteed) B3R 6158 78 faim| e 153,583 6533 160,116

—— — ——— E—— —— E— S

- Thesa resane nccounts compisa 1he consolicated resenes of AMB23,848 mion as ol 31 Decembar 2024 (31 December
2023: FMEZT ST milicn) i he consoldated statemsnt of financial positian,
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2024 2023
MNexlers AME million FME rmiliant
{Rastated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss palors lax; (1,163) {8,236}
Adjustrrents: kor:
Finanae axpenias 7 837 1,112
Share of profils aod losses of joanl venlures and associnles [1,107) {1,321}
Invtaenst meome & [1,002) (746}
Gain an disposal ol ilams of proparty, plant and equiprment
ang mlangble Easels, immdlment propary and olhie
Iong-T8rm assats (378) (178}
Gain on disposal af long-1erm imvestments - (128}
Less on changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
wihue thicigh profit of loss 11 4
Dwvidends from financial &sse1s af lar valua through olher
oMo NEngivg incoeme & (801} {1,813}
Galn on dsposal of financiad assets of lar valus through
pralil of loss and aller linarcal aseels (325) {342}
Cepreciation af propany, piant and equipment & 4,268 3273
Cepreciation of investment properties ] 161 =1
Depreciation af right-ol-use assets = 409 439
Ieripnitmmiant af ams of proparty, plant and sdupment & 18 198
Impameant af intangibla asaets 3] a4 120
Armariigation of intangibie assals = 1,883 1,472
Wite-gown of Inventories to nat reaisable value 8 276 426
Impainmant losses on inancial sssets & 631 1,144
Impaimant losses on long-term investments 13 -
Gain on acquisition of @ subsidiary [25) =
Amartisation of government grants 34 (523) 7T
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Incresss in imenlories

fincregseldecrease in race receivabies

Decreasafrcreasa) in bils receivakse

Decrease/rcreasa) in nancial assets at falr value through
edhae comprobonsive incoma

Ircredss n prepaymants, deposits and olher recavakies

[DRcraapayfincrants in iracke payables

Ircraasa in blls payable

[Decraasayincreass in contract kablities

Increase/decreass) in ofher cayables and accrials

(incregss i decraass in amounts dus from joint vaniurss

Decrease in loans and receivabios rem knancing sendzes

Increase im cash daposiis in the Group's inancing businass

Decraase m a mandalony resens

ncrease/dacreasa) in amounts due 1o point veniutes

Decreass in ofher long-larm lisbillbes

(Decraasayincrasss in provisicny

Cash generaled from operalions
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Met cash flows from operating activities

EDINETOOOO
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2024 2023
Notes AME rillion BME rrufian
{Rastated)
(833) {1,715}
[3,522) 7,297
2,572 {1.993)
5,191 2.471)
1.0185) {4,073}
(637) 5678
471 £,375
624) 508
2423 293
(305) 4 546
6,570 11,1008
2,505 4,019
236 363
4,043 116,521)
470} {206)
(163) 224
18,821 11,860
(583) {B54)
(1,938 {1,753}
17,388 9,253
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2024 2023
MNexlers AME million FME rmiliant
{Rastated)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of nems of progeny, plant ang eguspment and
olher lorg-tarm assels {11,658) {9,805}
Purzhases of intangible assels 8,084 {2.981)
Purchases of inveslroanl progsarties 23) -
IreREIMENTS IR jSind vanlures and asscciates is) {194}
Proceads from disposal of items cf proparly, plant and
aquiprment, intangitle assots ond ivestmant Eroperty 685 BE2
Procesds fram sake of fingncial assets af fair value through
olhar comprahonaig incoma B4 727
Procoads from sale of subsidiaries and associales - 7o
Dirvidhaniels fram joinl ventunes and associales 4,385 T.ro0
Dividands from financial assels a1 i value Irough other
Comprahinaia income 601 1,013
Gowernmint grants recehved 168 i
Irilmrast pecuived 1,002 748
Placemaent of pledged Dank balances and fime deposits and
financial assets ai fair value through profit ar loss - 30
Increass in non-pledged lime depesits with original maturity
of e months ar More Whén acquired {22,036) {8, 10:0)
Gain on dispesal of financial assats a1 fair value through
profil or loss and athor financial assets 335 342
Acquisiton of a subsidiany {1,122) -
Othar paymeants related 1o other iInvesting actiitias (150} {1,191}
Met cash flows used in investing activities (33.838) (138}
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2024 2023
Noles AME riltion FNE rrfhean
{Rastated)
Cash flows from financing aclivities
Procaads rom Borrowings and bongs 5,803 29,403
Rapayment ol barrowings (14,342) (27,496)
Capltal contabution bom ran-contralling sharsholdars 47 -
Repurchisse of shares 1) {963}
Devidands paid 1o non-controling sharahotdors 147) (240}
Dvidands paid o shareholders of the Company {413} {2,560)
Rapayment af lanse labilities (578) (425)
Other procesds related to financing sctivities 507 (105}
Het cash flows used in financing activities [8,202) {2,199}
Net [decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (25,341) 6915
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning af year 72,453 B5 442
Eftect of toreign exchangt rate changes, nat (20§ 96
Cash and cash aquivalents at end of yoar 28 46,083 72453
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2024 2023
Noles RME rillion RME il
{Rastated)
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Cash ang bark balances 44,924 58,970
Tima depasits 35,343 24544
80,267 83514
Less: Pledged bank balances &s statad and time deposis
for gacuAngG gRral Bankng lacilifes {4,414} {4,158}
Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement
of financial position 75,863 79,356
Less: Non-pigdged time deposits with arignal maturity of
over thies months when acquined (28,870) {6,802}
Cash and cash equivalents as stated In the statement
of cash flows 46,083 72,453
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For tha year anded 31 Decamber 2024

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Dengfang Motor Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint stock limited labiily company
incorporated it the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The reglstered office of [he Cornpany is located at
Specal Mo, 1 Dongleng Aoad, Wuhan Econamic end Technology Development Zone, Wuhan, Hubs, the PRC,
Durng 1ho yoar, 1he Compary and Ite subsidiarios (coltectively reforred 10 as tho “Group”) wore prncipally
engaged |n the manulacture ard sale of automobdes, engines and other auls parts and rendaring of fnancing
senices,

In the coinion of the direciors, the holding company and the ultimata holdng company of the Company is
Dongleng Motor Corporation ("DFM”), a state-owned enterpdise established in the FRC,

Information about subsidiaries
Parliculars of the Companmy’s principal subsidianas are as follows:

Pisceoi  Registersd Percantage of sguity

establishment  and pald attributable

Nama and business  up capilal 1o the Company Principal activities
RS milion Direst Indirect

Dongleng Specal Commeal PRC 3 1508 - Marifactum and sse of
Vehicle Ca,, Ltd, automitiles and milo parts
Gnina Dangieng Motor Industy [ oo 96,20 - impert and export of afomobies
Impart and Expont Ca., Led. and zuto parts
Congleng Mator Finance Gou, Lid PRC @000 100,00 - Pendering of firancing senices
r'DFF)
Gongleng Luhaa Metor o, Lid. PRC 1,285 500 - Manufacture and sals of
{*Dongleng Liug®) automabiles and auln parss
Conglang Gommercial Vehiciss PRC %200 55,00 - Mamutacture and sale of
Go.. Lid. {9FGY) automotiles and aulo parts
Congleng Peugsat Gitroén PRC 100 50,00 - Markstirg and sale of
Automebide Saies Co., Lid, automabilos
rPCE)
Dongleng Mofor investmant PRC 10 100,00 - Provsion of invesmen: and
{Wuhar} Ca.. Lid. adviscry services
Covgleng Mengd (Hangzhou) PG 360 0,72 4028 Menudacture and ssia of stn
Wotor Co, L, perls
Dongleng Zhuckan Autamatés PRC e 100,00 - Mearketrg and saeof
Servica Co., Lid. automehbiles and suln parts

190/327
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Parliculars of the Company’s prencepal subaldianes ame as follows: (continued)

Paces!  Registered Persentags of equity

establishment  and paid iributable
Name and business  Lp capital 1o the Compary Principal activities
RS mellcny Direct Indirect
Dongleng Ausomatile Trade Co, PRC 720 10000 = Mareringand s of
i autermobiles
Denglang Changaing Tachnology PRC 3457 100:00 - Rendering of autamobile leasing
Co.. L1d. sEViCad
hibsin Technology Go., Lid, PRC 3,564 100,00 - Manifacture and sue of sutp
peerls
Congleng Moto Muhan| Co., Ld. PRG 4,706 100,00 - Mantacture and s of
automobiles and auto paris
Congleng Lisharng Technoiogy PG 1m 1o - Manufacture and sse of
Co., Ltd automobiles and aulo parks
YOYAH Automote Technology PRC 3085 15,88 - Maniacture and ssle of
Compsny Lid. automobiles and autn parts
DangFang Ausomobss Co, Lid, PRC 2,000 8500 - Manufacture and ssie of
autormpbiles and st parts
Mearvdou Liuning System inbagration PRC 100 43,73 - Manidacture and ssa of st
G, Ll part
Dongieng Auta Financa Co., Lin, PRC 5000 100,00 - Rendering cf financing serices
Doyglang Ausomotive Nanometes PRC 2,50 100,00 - Sak of automoblies and aute
Tecrnoiogy Go., Lid pearts
Marwgshi Automabils Sales Sendce PRC 100 100,00 - Sak o sulomobilies and sulp
Co. L1l perts
Conglong Car Masometer PRC £ 100,00 - Manufacturs and sl of
Tectnoiogy (Xiangyangl Ca.. automablies and auto parss
i

% In September 2014, 1he Company and Peugect Citroén Autamobile Company jointly establishad ol DPCS with
ragistered captal of RIMBITO0 milion, The dacksions on the main business sctivities of DPCS are mads by the Board
ot Diractors. The Boara of Directors conststs of 6 oirectors, 3 of whom are appointed by tha Company and the
Chaitman of DPGS & appointed by te Gompany, Acconding 1o the Articies of Associaton of DPGS, msolutions
& the Board of Directors shal be adopled by skrple magarity volirg (L6, Mo than kall af the total numtar ol
woled cast in lavowr of & resoliftion), If & resciulion carnol be pissed due to desdiack in the voling of the Board af
Diractors {Le, @0 eqial numbss of volas casl in favour 0f and against a resoliien), 1he Chaiman of DPCS has the
final dacision night. Tha Company substantialy owns the voting rights of OGS and has consolidated OPCS in the
consokcaled inancial statamants.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These conaolidated financial stetements have been prepared in accordance with all spplicabls
Intamational Financial Raporting Standards ("IFRS") and the disc'oore requiremeants of the Hong Kang
Companies Ordinance. Thoy hove Doen propared undor tho histarical cost convention, excopt lor
ceftain financlyl assets and labillies measured af fair value, These financial statements sre presantad In
Renminil ("AMB"] and all values are rounded to thie nearest milllon except when ofbenwise indicated.

Basiz of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements includa the financial statemenis of the Company and 15
gubsidiarias for the year ended 31 Decamber 2024, A subsidiary is an enlity (Incluging & etruciured
entuty), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company, Contral is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, (0 vaqiable returns from ts invalvement with the investes end has 1ha abaty
to affect inose retumns through its power over the ivestes (Le,, existing rights that give the Groun the
currant ability to direct the relavant activities of tha invastea).

Generally, there | a presumption that a majority of vating rights resuits in control. When the Company
has less than a majorily of the valing or ssmilar Aights of an investes, the Group considers ai relavant
faets and ercumatances in assesaing whether il has power awvar an imaeates, Ineluding:

{a)  the contractual arrangemant with the other vola holders of tha inestes,

{6} righta ariging from other contractusi arrangemants: and

&) thia Group's veting righta and potantial voting nghts,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
21 BASIS OF PREPARATION [continuad)
Basis of consolidation {continued)

Tho financial statoments of the subaidianes aro proparad for the samo freporting period as tho
Comparry, using conslstent accounling policies, The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group cbialns control, and continue io be consolidated until the date that such
contral conses.

Profit or loss and each companent of oiher comprehensive Income are atiributed to the owners of
the paent of e Group and 1o ths non-controlling mbeests, ewn i his meadis n e non-contralling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and lRabiities, equity, intome, expensas
and cash flows relating to transactions betwesn members of the Group are ellminaied in full an
cansalidation.

Tha Group reaseasses wheltner of noet it controle an inveatee if facte and circumstances indicate that
thera are changes (o ong or more of the three etements of control described above. A change n 1he
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contred, |s accounted for 8s an ecuity tramsaction,

If he Group loses confred ovar @ subsidiary, it derecognises the relalad assats (nciuding geodwil),
Habdites, any non-controlling inferest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recogrises tha fair
value of ary iInvesiment retained and any resulting surpius or deficit in profit or Ipss, The Group’s share
of components prevlously recognisad In other comprehenalve Income |s reclassifed to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same baais as would be reguirad it the Group had directly
disposed of Ihe relafed assats o labdilies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has acopbed the lollowing revised IFRSs for the first time for the current year's financlal

statamante,
Amardments to IFRS 16 Leases Liabilty ina Sale and Leasetbiack
Amardments to 1AS 1 Classification of Liablities as Currert or Non-gurrent
[thas “2020 Arnandrmant’)
Amendments 1o 1AS 1 Men-gurrent Liobilities with Covenanis
{the *2022 Amendmenis®)
Amandmenis to 145 7 and IFES 7 Buppler Finance Arrangaments

Tha nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are descrinod below:

{a) Amendments to IFRE 16 spacily 1he requiremants that a sallar-lassee uses in measuring the
leasa lability anising im a sale and leaseback transaction 1o ensure the selier-lesses does not
recogniss any emount of the gain or loss that relates o the right of use it retang, Since the
Group has no sale and leasaback fransactions with varisble lease payments that do not depand
on an index or a rate occurring from the date af initial application of IFRS 16, the amendmesvts
did pot have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Bl The 2020 Amendments clarify tha raquirements for classifying llabdities as current or nan-
current, mcluding what s maant by a right to de'er sattlemant and that a right 1o delar must exst
at the end of iha reporing penod. Classification of a liability iz unaffected by the Skelihocd that
the entity will exercise its right to defer seltlemeant, The amendments also clarfy that a Rability
can be sattled in its own equity Instruments, and that only Il 8 conversion option in a corvertible
liability is itsaif accounted for a5 an equity instrument would the larms of a llabéity na! impact its
classification. The 2022 Amendmente furthar clarify that, among covenante of & liability arising
from a lcan armangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or balore the reporting
dale affect the classification of ihat llablity as currant or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabliities thal are subjsct to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months aftar the reporting pariod.

The Group has resssessed the terms and conditions of ils kablities as at 1 Janoary 2023 and
2024 and concluded that the classification ol e liabilites as current or non-cument remained

unchanged upon initial appication of the amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

e} Amendments to &3 T and IFAS 7 clarity the cheracteristics of supplier linance arangements
and require additional dlaclosure af such amangemants. The disclasure requirements in tha
amandmonts ore intendod 10 assisl unors of financial statemanis in understanding tho offocts of
suppher inance arrangemants on an enbity’s Babifies, cash flows and exposure 1o liquidity risk,
As the Group doas not have supplier finance arrangemants, the amendmenis did rot o any
Impact on the Group's financial statemants,

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the followsng new and revized [FRSa. that have been issued but are not yel
effeciiva, In thesa financial statements, The Group intends to spply these néw and revised IFRSs, If
applcabde, whan they hecome elfectve.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Fnancial Statements”

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountatelity:
Disciosiras?

Amandments to IFRS & ang FRS 7 Amendmants to the Clasaifeation and Meaguremant
of Financial Ingtruments®

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sele o Contribution of Assais betwaen an Invesior
and Itz Assochate or and |AS 28 Joint Venture!

Amandments to 1AS 21 Lack of Exchangaabity’

Annudl Imgrovemeants o IFRS Accounting Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS T, IFRS 8, IFRS 10 and

Standarda - Violume 11 1AS T

L Effective for annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

T Effsciiva for annual periads beginning on or after 1 January 2028

» Eflective for anmual/reporting pericda beginning on or after 1 January 2027

4 Mo mandatory effective dale ya1 datarmined bul avadable for adeotion
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFASs that are expected to be appleabla ta the Group B deserioed
bolow.

IFAS 18 replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. While a number of sections have
besn Brought forward fram 1AS 1 with limited changes, IFRS 18 introduces now requiremants for
prasentation within the statement of prolit or l0ss, including specified tofals and subtotais. Entities are
required 1o classily all mcome and expenses wihin the statsment of profit of loss inte one of the e
cabtegorias: operating. mvasbng, financing, income taxes and discontirued operatons and io present
twa new dafingd sublatalg. It aleo requires disciosures sboul management-defined parformance
measures in a single note and Infreduces enhanced requiraments on the grouping (aggregation and
dizaggragailon) and tne location of information in bath 1he primeny financial statements and tha notes.
Eome reguiraments previously included in 1AS 1 are moved to WS B Accounting Policses, Changas
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, which |z renamed as |AS 8 Basis of Preparation af Financlal
Statements, As & conssquence of the msuancs of IFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments
are made 1o 1S T Statemant of Cash Fiows, 1AS 33 Eamings per Share and A5 34 Interim Financial
Reporting. In addition, here are minor consequential amandmeants {o other IFRS=. IFRS 18 and the
conaaguential amendmeants to ethar [FRSs are effective fer annual perleds baginning on o atter 1
January 3027 with earlier application permitied, Rerospeciive appliication |s required. The Groug s
currently analysing the new requiremants and assessing the iImpact of IFAS 16 on the presentation and
discioawe of the Group®s finandsl statemants.

IFRS 19 sliows eligible entites (o elecl to apply reduced disclosure reguiraments while sl applying
thia recogriicn, measurement and presantation requiraments in other IFRS2. To be eligibie, &t the end
of the reporting period, an antity must be a subsidiary as dafined in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statemanis, cannot have public accountability and must hava a parent {ultimata or intermediate} that
prepares consolidated financia statements avallable for public use which comply with IFRSs. Earlier
application Is pammitied, As the Company ks a listed company, it is not eligible 1o eiact to apply IFRS
18. Somé of the Company's subsidisies are conaidsring the application of IFRS 18 In their specified
firsancial staternants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendmants to IFRS 9 and IFRS T clarily the date on which a linancial asset ar finencial Nability is
derecognmed and infreduce an acoounting policy option to derecognian o financial Fability that is
sefthed through an electronic payment system bators the settlernant date i specified oritena are mel.
The amendments clarity how to assess the contractual cash flow cheracieristics of financlal assets with
ervirenmantal, social and governance and oifor ssmilar contingent features. Morsover, the amendments
clarity the requramants for clasaitying financial assets with non-recourse featwred and contraciually
linked instruments, The amendments also include additional disclosures for invesiments in equity
instrumends designated at talr value through oltws comprehensive income and linancial instrumants
with contingant leaturas. The amendments shall be applied retrospactivaly with an adjustment to
opeming ratained profits jor other component of equity) at the ntial application date. Prior penods are
no required 1o be restated and can onty ba restated withow! the use of hindsight, Earlier application
ol efther all the amendments &t the =ame time or only the amendments relatad to the classiication ef
financil @seels 2 pemmitiod. The amendmoents sre nol cxpeciod 1o have any significant impast on 1he
Group's financial statemerts.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and AS 28 address an Inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and In [AS 28 in degling with the sals ar contribudion of aseats batween an invesior and ita azseckata or
point vendura, The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or boss resultng from a downsinesm
transaction when the sale or coninbution of assels constitutes a business, For a transaction invohing
assets that do not constilule a business, & galn or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the imvastor's profit or loss only 1o the extent of the unselated imeeator's Intereat in {hat assoctate or
point venilure, The armendments ase to be appked prospecively. The predous mandalory elfeclive date
af amendmanis to FAS 10 and 1AS 28 was removed by the HKCPA. Howsever, the amandmanis are
avallable for adoption now.

Amaenoments o A5 21 specify how an entity shell assess whether a currency Is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a spol exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangesability & lacking. Tha amendmeants require dieclosures of information that enable vsers of
firanclal statemnants o understand the impact ol a currency not besng exchangeabla, Earler aoplication
is permitied. When appiying tha emendmants, an entity cannot restale comperative mformation.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retalmed profita or to the cumudative amount of trensiation ditferencas
accumulated in 8 separale componend of equily, where appropriate, at lhe date of inllial applicaton.
The amendments are not axpected 1o have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improsemants to IFRS Aecounting Standards - Valume 11 88t out amandmants o IFRS 1, IFRS
¥ [and the accompanying Guidancs on implermonting IFRS 7], IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and WAS 7, Details of 1no
amendmenls that are expectad to e applicatie 10 the Group ane as lolows:

. IFRS 7 Financlal Instrurments: Diselosuras: The ampndmients heve updated cerain wording in
paragraph B3E of IFAS 7 and paragraphs 161, 1614 snd IG208 of tre Guidance on impementing
IFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or echieving congistency with athet paragraphs in the
standard and'or with the eoncepts and ermnolegy used in other standards, in additon, the
amendmante clarlfy that the Guidance an implementing IFRS 7 doas not recassarily lllustrata
all the requirements in the reteranced paragraphs of IFRS 7 nor does it creats additional
requirements, Easlier application |s permitted. The amandments are not expectad 1o have any
significant impaat on the Group®s tinanclal statemants,

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amandmanis clarify 1hat when a lesses has determingd thal a
lease Hebliity has been extinguishad in accordance with IFRS 9, the lesses is regured 1o apply
paragraph 3.3.3 of IFRS & and recognise amy resulbing gein or loss In profit or loss. In addition,
thie amendrments hove updated certain wording In paragraph 5.1.3 of IFRS O and Appendix A af
IFRS 9 fo remove potentlal confusion. Earlier application is permitied, The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Groun's tnancial stalements,

. IFRE 10 Consglidated Financial Statements: The amendments clarify that the relatienship
described in parsgraph BF4 of IFRS 10 is just one example of verious realionshps that might
axist betwean thie investar and oiher partias acting as de facto agents of the imastor, which
removes tha inconsistancy with the requremant In paragraph B73 of IFRS 10. Earler aoplication
|s permitted. The amendments are not expecied o have any significan! mpact on the Group's
fimancisl statements,

- IAS 7 Stalement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace tha tarm *cost method” with "at cost®
i paragraph 37 of 1AS T following the prior delation of the dafinition of “cost method®, Earlier

application s permitted. The amendmenis are noct expeciad to hawe any impact on the Group's
fnancial statemants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments ln assoelates and joint ventures

An associalo is an onlity in whoch the Group has o long-tarm intarest of gonerally not less thas 20%
ol Ihe equity voling rights and cver which if has significant influsnce. If the Group holds less than 20%
of the equity voting rghts ol the invesiee but cen clearly demonstrate |t has sigrificant influence over
the imvostes, the Group accounts Sush invesioes as associates; Signiean! iMluenca is tha power to
partcipate In the ingncial ond operating polcy decisions of the Fvestes, but is not control or jint
cantrol over Those policies,

A joing vanture i a typae of |oint arrangament whersby tha parties that have joint contral af the
arrangement have nghts to the net assels of the joint ventuse, Joint control (s the contraciually agreed
sharing of contred of an arrengement, which exssts only when decisions about the relevant acthitias
rafuire tha unanimous consent of {he parlies sharing condral,

The Group's invesiments in assocetes and point ventures are staled in the consoldated slatement of
financial position &t the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losseas.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other compeehansive income of associales
and [oint wentures is inCluded in the consoficated statement of profit or loss and consalicated other
comprehensia income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised diectly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recogrises iis share of any changes, whan
applcaile, In the consclidated stat=anent of changes in equity. Unrealssad gains and losses resulting
from fransections behwean the Group and ite 2asnciates or joint ventures are aiminated to the extent
af the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where unreaksad lossas provide
evidance of an impairment of e assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acouisition of associates
or joint veniures ks included as part of the Group's investmenis im associaies or joint ventures.

It an invastmant In an associate bacomes an investmant in a joint venlure or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured, Instead, the imesiment conlinues 1o be accountad for under the equity
method. in all other case, upon loss of ssgnificant influence over the essociata o joint conirol over
the joint venlura, the Group measures and recogrises any retained imvestment at s fair value. Any
differance belween tha carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loas of aignificant
infuence o |oinl conlol and the {eir value of the etained ivestment and procesds from disposal is
recogrised in profit or koss,

‘When an investmeant in an associate or a joint veniure is classified as hald for sale, |t is accouniad for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Mon-current Assels Heid for Sake and Discontinued Oparalions,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2., ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Business combinations other than common eanfrol

Businpss combinations athor than thase undor commen contral an accountod for using the acquesition
method, The consideration transferred s measured at the acquisition date ‘alr value which is the sum
of the acquesition date e values ol assets fransferred by the Group, iabilities assumad by the Group
to the fermer ownees. of Th acquires and the egquily interests iszund By the Grous in sxchango lor
conirol of the acouiree, For each business combination, tha Group elects whether (o mansura the
non-conbreling interests in the acquirse at felr valus or at the propartionate share of the acquires’s
idaniiiabla rol assets, AN oitws componenis of non-controling interesis are measured at ter value,
Acquisition-ralated coste are expengad as incurred.

Tha Group determines that it has acquired @ bDusimeas whaen the acguired s&1 of activilies and assets
inciudes an Input &nd & substantive process that together significantly confribute to the ability 1o creats
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, | assesses the financial assets and lizbilitles assumed for
appropriate classification and dasignation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
clreumsiances and pertinent conditions as at the acouisition date. Thia includes tha saparation of
embedded derivatives in host conracts of the acquiree.

It ihe busness combdnation |z achleved In stages, he previously held equity interest |s remeasured
&l ita acquistion date elr value and any resulling gain of loss ia recogrised |n profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, Bs approgpriate,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer ls recognised al fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified es an assel or lability s measwed at fair value with
changes in falr value recognised in prodif or loss, Gontingent consldaralion that is classified as eguity 15
nod remeasured and subsequent setliement is accounted for within equity.

Goocdwill s tnitially measured at cost, belng the excess of the aggregate of the conalderation
translarred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair velue of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acguires over the idantifisble assets acouired and labilitias
assumed. | the sum of this conslderation and other itema |s lower than the falr vahue of the net assets
acqguired, the dillerence s, aller reassessmenl, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Business combinations other than common conirol (continued)

Aer initisd recognition, geodwill i measured ol coal less any accurulated impanment losses. Goodwil
is tested for imparment annually or more Irequenily if evenis o changas in circumsalances |ndicate
that the carrying value may be impaired, The Group performs its annual iImpalrment test of goodwill as
al 31 Decambr, For the purpdss of Impairment lesbng, goodwill sequirad in a business eambination
ig, trom the acquisition cate, aSocaled 1o each of 1he Group's cash-generating wnits, or groups of
cash-ganerating units ("CGU"), that are expected 1o benelit rom the synergies of the combination,
brespective of whathar other assats or lakdities of the Group are asssgnied 1o those units ar groups of
unitg.

Impairmant ks detesmined by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the goadwil|
relates. Whare the recoverable amount of the GGU Is |lass than the carmpang amount, an impairent loss
ie recognised. An mparmen lose recogmised for goodwill ls not revarsad in a subseguant periad.

Where goodwill has been siocated fo & CGLU end part of the operation within that unit (s disposed
al, the goodwill associated wilh the operation disposed of Is included in the carrying amount of

tha eparation when determining the gain of lose on the deposal. Goodwil dispesed af in theas
circumalances 5 meesured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and ihe portion of
the CGU reained.

Business combinations under common control

Busness combinations of antites under comman contral are accountad for using the pooling of
Interesis mathod.

The consolidated Snancial statements incorporate the financial statemants of the combaning entities or
businesses In which the common confrol combinaticn occurs as §if they had been combined from the
date when tha combining enlities or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party,

The assets and llabilities of the combining entities or businesses are combned usng the camying book

values from the controlling party's perspective. Mo amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill
or axcess of acquirer's inlerest in the net lalr value of acquires’s identifiable assets, llabllties and

contingent liabllities over the consideralion al the lime of common control combination, to the axbenl of
the continuation af the controlling partys interast.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2., ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Business combinations under common confrol {conimsed)

The consolidated statemant of comprahensive incoms includes tha resulls of cach of tha combaning
enhiligs or busingsses [rom the earlest date pressntad or &nce the date when the combining enlilias
o businesses first came under the common control, where there |s a shorier pesiod, regerdlass of the
date af tha common canirel combsnation. Transaclion cosle, ncuding profassicna! feps, registration
feea, costa of furmeahing infosmation to shareholders, coats or lbases ncurred in combining aperations
al the previously seperate busnesses, elc,, incurred in relalion 1o the common contrel combimation that
8 accounted for by using marger aceounting &fe reccgnised 8s axpanses in the perod in which they
&fe mcured,

Fair value measurament

The Group measures its investmant propedties, dervative finencial instrumenis and equity Investments
at fair valug al the and of each reporting period, Fair value 18 the price that would be received fo sail
an assat of pald 1o franster a lizbility In an orderty ransaction between market panicipants at the
measuremant dale, Tha fair vaue measurement is basad on the presumpbion that the transaction to
gall the assat or tranater the labdity 1okes place either in the principal marked for the asaat o Labslity,
of in ihe sbsence of & principal market, in the most advantagecus market Tor the asset or Raoility, The
principal or the moat adventageous market must be accessible by the Group, The tair value of an asset
or a liabibty = measured using the assumptiona that market paticipants wowld use when pricing the
asaet or labdity, assuming that marke! parlicipants act in thesr economic best interast.

A dair value maasurement af & non-financial Gzast takes Inlo Account & markat parficipant ‘s ability to
genarais econcmic benslits by using the assat in itz highest and best ues or by salling [t to amother
market participant that would use the assat in s highest and best usa,

The Group uses valuation techrigues that are appropraie in the citcumstances and for which sufficient

data are avallable to measwe fair value, maximising the usa of relevant observable Inputs and
ménimising the wse of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Falr value measuremant (eontinued)
All gssots and linbilitios for which for value is moasured of disclosed in he financal statements arg

calegorized within the lair value histarchy, described as follows, based on the owes! level inpul that is
significant to the ter value measurement 85 a whole:

Lewal 1 - bosed on guated prices (unadiustad) in octive markets for identical assets or fabilities

Leval2 - basedon veluslion lechnigues for which the lowest level input hal = significant to the
tar valus measuremant iz chservable, ather diacily or indirecthy

Leval3 - based cmvalustion echnigues for wivich tha lowest level input that & significant to tha

fer value measuramant is uncheervable

For assets and liabllities that are recognised In the finanalal statemenis on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whather transfes have occurred between lewvets in the hisrerchy by reassessing
categotisation fbased on the kowest levd input that is significant to the fair valus measuremant as a
whale} at the end of sach reporting perod.

Impalrment of non-financial assets

‘Where an indication of impairment axists, or when annual impaimmerd [Esting for an assel s required
{othar than inventories, contract assats, deferred tax assets, financial assats, invastment propartias
and non-curment assetsfa disposal group classified as held for sale), the assel’s recoverable amount (s
esiimated. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of tha assal’s or cash-generating unit"s value in
use and (te falr value less costs of oisposal, and is detesmined for an individual assel. unless the asset
do=s not generate cash inflows that are largaly independent of those trom ather assats or groups of
assats, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generaling unit to which the
asset befongs.

In tesling a cash-generating unit for mpairmand, a portion al the carmdng amount of & coroorate assel
|8.g., a headquarters buildéng) iz slocated to an ndhvidual cash-generating unit if it can be aliocated on
a reasunable and consislen] basis or, olherwise, lo the smallesl group of cash-generating units,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Impairment of nen-financial assets feontinued)
Animpairmont loss is rocognised only il the carrying emount of an assol oxsoods 18 recoverabilo
amount, in asiessng vahis in use, the astimated fulute cash lows are discounted 1o thelr present valus
uging a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assasaments of the time valua of monay and
the rigks specilie 1o the asset, An imparmant lozs is charged to e statement of pralt or loss in 1he
periad i which il er@es in hose expenie calegones conaiglant with the function of the impaired assed.
An assessment |5 mede al the end of sach repoding period as to whathar ther s an indcailon that
praviously reeognized impairmaent losses may no longar exizt or may heve deereased. Il sueh an
indication exsts, the recoverabla amount {2 estimated. A previously recognised imparmant loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if thers nas bean & change in tha estimates wsad 1o detarming
the recovarabls amount af that assal, bul mot to &n amount higher than the carnying amount that would
have oeen determined (net of any cepreciation/amortization) had no Impalment loss been recognisad
for tha assaf in prior yeers, A reversal of such an mpasment loss is credited 1o the statement of prafit
or less in the period In which it arlses.
Rolated partios
A party Is considerad 1o ba refated 1o the Group #:
{8l the parly iz 8 persan or A clage mambar of tha! parson’s family and that parson
[t has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant nfluence over the Group; or

(M)  =amember of the Key managemsant perscnnel of the Group or of & parent of the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarrber 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)

Related parties feontinued)

B the party is an eniily whore any of the falliowing condilions apohes;

]

=

]

i)

{wil

the enfity and the Group are members of the same group;

ong entity |a an asaociate o pent vaniurg of the olher entity (or of o parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the olher entity);

ira antity and the Group are |oint veniures of the same thind party:

ong entity = & jent venture of @ third antity end tha other entity i3 an assoclate of the third
anlity;

ihe anlily is a post-empoyment benehl plan for tha benslit of emaloyeas of either the
Group or an entity related 1o the Group: (If the Group is itself such a plan) and the
sponsoning employers of the post-employment benafit plan;

ihe eniity is condrolled ar jointly controtied by & person identified in jal;

a parson |dentifled i ja) () has sigrificant Influsnce ower the entity o |s 8 member of he
key managament parsonnel ol the entity [or of & parent of 1he entityl; and

e antity, or ary mamber of 8 group of which it I8 8 part, provides key managemeant
parsonnel sandcas (o the Group or 1o the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plani and equipmant, othar than construction in progress, are stafed at cost lass accumulated
deprecalion and any imparmeant lossas. When an itam of property, plant and eguipment is classified
a@s held for zale or when it is parl of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it =8 not depreciated
and Is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting palicy for "Non-
cument assets and disposal groups held for sale®. The cost of an itern of proparty, plant and equipment
comprises ils purchasa price and any daectly atiribulable cosis of bringing the assal to lls working
candilicn and location for (ts infended uss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Froperty, plant and equipment and depreciation {continued)

Expanditure incurred alter lems of proporty, plant and equipmont have Boen put Mo aporation, such o
repairs and maintensnce, & normally changed o the statamant of profit or loss in the period in which Lis
Incurred., In sibuations whare the recognition criteria are satlsfied, the expenditure for a maljor Inspection
it captiaised in the carying amount of 1he azest ag a roplacamant. VWhin sgnificant pars of proparty,
plant and equipmeont are reguired to be replaced ot Intervals, the Group récognises such parts os
incividual assels wilh specific useful lves and deprecales hem accordingly.

Dapreciation ig calculated o the straight-line basiz ta write of the cost of aach item af property. plant
and egqupmant (0 18 residual value over its estimated usaful ke. The principal annual rates used for this

pUFpose are 88 follows:
Buildings 2.50% 1o 20,00%
Equiprnent 9.33% 10 33.33%

Whare oarts of an ifom of proparty, glant and equipment have different wselul Inas, the cost of that itam &
alocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each parl is depreciated separately. Uselul ives
and the depreciation mathod are reviewed, and adusted I approprate, at Wwast af each fnancial yoar
and,

An item ol property. plant and equipment including any significant parl Inikally recognised Is
defecogisad upon dispossl or whan no futuing econcmic benefits ae axpacted from its use o digpassl.
Any gon of logs on disposal or rtirement recognised in the statement of profit or lose in the year 1he
assel i deresognised is the dilerence belween the net aales procesds and the camying amount of 1he
relevant asset,

Conatrechon in progress is slated ab cost l8ss any impainment 106368, and is not depreciated. it g
reclassified 1o the aporopriate category of property, plant and eguipment when completed and ready
for s
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For the year ended 31 Decarrber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Invesiment properties

Investiment proportios ang interests n land and buikdings (nciluding night-of-uso ossels) held fo oarn
renlal insome andior ‘or capital appreciation, The Group applies the cost model for recognition of
Investment properties, Investment properties are measured infially 8t cost, inclucing related transaction
costs, Aftar inlial recagrition, investmant proparties are stated at histodcal eost less aecumulatad
depseciation and impairman: lceses, Subsequent expendilure s charged 1o the aaset's carrying
amount only when |1 s probable thet future economiz benelils associated with the iem will Sow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured relably, Al otber repairs and manienance cosls are
expensad in the consolidated statement of comprahensive incoma during the Bnancal parod in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is caleulalad using ihe siraight-line method to allocate their costs to ther rasidual values
af 0% over thelr estimated usetul lves. Tha principal annual rates used for the purpose are as follows:

Bulldings 2.5% 1o 10%
Land wsa rights 29

The Basets’ residual values and usstul llves sre reviewad, and adjuated Il aopropriate, at e and of
oach reporting period.

An gssel's carmying amount is witien down immediately Lo iis recoverable amount if the asset's camying
amount & greater than 13 estimeted recoverable amaunt.

Intangible assets fother than goodwill)

Intangibda Assets acoured sepafately ara measured on initial rezognition & cost. The cost of ntangibla
assels acquired in a business combinalion (& the fair value al the date of acquigition, Tha useful ves
af intanglile assets are assessed to be either finlte or indefinite. Intanglbée assats with finite ives are
subsequently amartised cver the uselul economic life and assessed for impalrment whenaver there is
&n indicathon that the intangibée assat may be Impaired. The avmorisation perlod and the amartisation
method for an intangible asset with o finitbe usaful lilc ane reviewed at Ieast &t each Snancisl yoor ond.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Intanglble assels fother than goodwill) {continued)
Patarfs and loonces

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any imoalrment losses and are amortisad on the
siralgnl-line basis aver thalr sstimated uselul lves of & to 10 yeara.

Research and aevelopriant cogls

All researeh cosla afe eharged 1o the statemaent of profit of loss ag incurred.

Expandiiura incurred on projecis 1o develop méw producls 1 capltalised and dalgred anly whan the
Group can demonsirate the lechnical tessibility of complating the Intangible asset ao that it will be
avallable for wee or gale, ite intention to compéete and (te ability 1o use or sell the azset, how the assst
will generate fulure economec benefits, the evailability of resources to complate the project and the
abilty to measure rekably the expenditure during the development, Procuct developmeant expendifure
which does not meat these oriteria is expensad when incurred.

Deferred development cosis are stated al cost less any imperment losses and are amortised using
the straight-line basis over the commercial bves of the undarlying products nol excesding five o sevan
yaars, commencing from ihe date when the products sre put inlo cemmarcial production.

The carrying value of development costs s reviewed lor impasmeni sannualy when the assel s not yel
n use, or mane fraquently when an indization of impairmeant arses during the year,

Cusiomer relalionsinps

Customer relationships are s1ated at cost less any Impalrment losses and are amortised on the straight-
Ene Dasks over their estimated usaful bves of 10-17 years.

Tracemarks

Purchosad trademarks are stated at cosl less any Impairment kosses and are amorlised on the straight-
line Dasis over their estimated usaful bves of 5 to 10 years,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Leases

Tho Group assessos of confract incoplisn whothor 4 coniract ia, or comams, o loase. & conlract ia, of
cantaing, a bsasas if the conbract comveys the right 1o contral 1he use of an dentited asset for a period of
time In exchangs for cons:deration.

Group as a lessoe

The Group apples & singhs recogniion and messuremant approach Tor all laases, excapd for shori-temm
teazas and leages of low-value assals. The Group récognizes lsese liabiites to make lease paymants
and righi-oi-use assets represanting the right 1o use the underlying assats.

{a) Right-ol-use assats

Right-of-use assets era recognised at 1he commencement date of the 'aase (that = the date
the underlying assel |s gvailable for use). Right-of-use assets are maagsurad al cost, less
accumulated depreciaton and any mpaiment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
laass liabilities. The coat of right-ol-usa aesels includes the amount of laase liabilities recagnised,
initial direct costa ncurred, and lease payments made at or belore the commencement date ess
any laase incentives received, Right-of-use assels are deprecialed on & straight-line basis aver
the shorter of the lesss term and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows ©

Leasehold land and land use rights 13 o 50 years
Buddings 3 to P0 pears
Equipmant and vekicles 310 5 years

It eanrieship of s beased Bssat franafers ta ths Group by the and af s loass tarm o the ooat
raflects the exarcies of & purchase option, depreciabion ig ceiculated using the estimaled useful
life of the asset,
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Notes to the F’ihanﬁlafma:tmants (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Leases {continued)
Group as a fegsoo (corfinesed]
b}  Lease liatditles

Lonse liabilites ore recognised at the commencernent dabe of 1he lasse at the presend valua of
lease paymenis o be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fized paymenis
{inehadeng in-substance Hxed payments) less any lease incenivas recavable, varlable lease
payments thal depend on an indax or a rale, and amounts axpected to e pasd undar residual
value guarantess, The lease paymenis also include the exercise prica of & purchass option
reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Group and payments of penalies Tor jermination of
o leasa, if the leess term refiects the Group exerciamg the option to terminale the leass. The
vanabie lease paymanis that do not depend on an index o a rale ara recognisad as an axpensa
in the peniod in which the event or condition that triggers the payment oocurs.

Im calculaling the presant value of lease payments. the Group uses ite iIncremanial borrowwing
rate at the lpase commencemant date because [he intarest rate Implicit i the lsase s not readily
delerminable. Alter (ne commencemean| date, the amount of lsase kebiifles = increased 1o refect
the accretion of intersst and reduced for the lease paymenis made. In additan, the camying
amount of leasae liabllities s remeasured if there s 8 modification, a change in the leass term, &
change in lease paymants (8.9, achanga to fulure lease payments rasulting from a changa in an
Indax ar rete) or 8 change i assessmeant of an option to purchase the underiyving assel.

The Group’s lease lisbllities are includad in interest-baaring bank and other borrowings.

c)  Shori-term leases and |eases of low-valus assels
The Group spplias the short-term lease recognition exemplion to its short-tarm ieases of
machinery and equipmant (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commancement oata and do not contain a purchase option). It siso apples the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assals to lsases of office eguipment and leplop computers
that mne considened to be of low valus.

Lease payments on shorl-lerm leases and keases of low-valus assets are recognised as an
Expenss on a streight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Leases {continued)
Grougp as a lessor

‘When the Group &cts as a lessor, It classiiies ai leasa inception (or when there s a lease modification)
oach of ls Ipages as wither an coarating lease of a finance lexse.

Leasas in which the Group does not tranafer substantialy all the risks and rewards incldentsl to
ownarshep of an asset are classified as cperating leeses. \Whaen a contract conlaing lease and non-lease
companants, the Group aliocates tha considaration in the confract to esch component on a relathe
siand-alone seling pnce basis, Rental income is accounted for on a atraight-lne besla over the lease
term and |s Included In revenua in the statameant of profit or loss due 10 15 operatng nature, ntial direct
casts Incurrad in negoliating and arranging an eperabing lease are added o the camrying amount of the
leasad assel and recogrised over the lease term on the eame besie as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revanu in the pariod inwhich they sre earmsd,

Leases that transfer substantiely all the risks and rewards incidental to ownarship of an underlying asset
to iha lasses are accounted for as finance loages,

Investments and other financial assels
Initizl recegnition and measurament

Financial asseis are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequentty maasured at amortised cost, fair
valua through other comprehansive income, and fair value through profit or koes.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition cepands on the financlal asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group®s business modal for managing them. With the eaxception of
trada recaivables that do nol contain a signilicant fnanoing componant or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing componant, the
Group mitially measures a fnancial asset at Its fair value plus in the case of a financ-al asset not at
fair valu= through profit or loss, ransaction costs, Trade recebables that co not contain a significant
financing componert or for which the Group has apolied the practical expocient are measured at the
Lransaction price determined undar HKFRS 15 in accordance wilh the policies sal oul for “Revenue
recognition” balow.
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Notes to the F’ihanﬁlafma:tmants (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Investments and other financial assets (eontinued)
ritid rocogalion and imeasurament [comningea]

In order for a nancial asset to be classibed and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprohenshvo incoma, i1 nesds 19 give rise to cash flows thal are salaly paymonis of pracepal and
intenest CEPPIT on the principal amount cutatanding. Financal nssets with cosh fiows that ae not SPP|
are classified and measured & tar value through profit or loss, Frespective of the business model,

The Group's buziness madal for mansging financial aszats reders to how it manages it fnancisl
assals in order 1o generate cash flows. The busness model defermnes whether cash flows will result
fram collecting confractual cash fliows, saling the firancial assets, or both, Financial asgets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a businass modal with the abjective to hold financial
agsets in order lo collect contractual cash flowe, whie financial assets classified and maasurad at fair
value through ofher comprehenaive income are held within a busness modal with the obective of Doth
ho'ding to collect contractual cash fews and selling. Fineancial asseis wihich are not haid within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measuwred at talr value through profit or loss,

Purchases or sales of financigl assets that reguire delivery of assets within the period generally
eslabished by regulation or comantion in the marketplace are recogrised on the trade cate, that is, the
date that the Group commiis o purchess or seld the assot,

Subseguen! measurernani

The subsegquent maasuremant of financlal assats depands on ther classificalion as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (osbt instruments)

Financial aesats at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effactive interest method and

are subject to impairment. Gans and losses are recognesed in the statemeant of orofit o koss when the
assel 15 derecogmised, modited or impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Investments and other financial assets (eontinued)
Financil assets af fale valve through othor comprehensivg moomae (dab instrumania)

For dabt investments at falr value through other comprehensive Incoma, intarest income, foreign
axchango revaluation and (mpairment losses or roversals ae recognized in the statomant of peafit
ar loss and compuled i the same mannes as for financisl nssers measured ot amaortisea cost. The
remasnng lak value changes are recognised in other congirehensve incoms, Upon derecognition, 1he
cumuiative lair value changs recogrised i ofiber comprahansive ineoma is recyclad o the statement of
profit or lesa.

Flinancial assels designaled ar falr vallsg throwgh oifier comprafensiag incoma fedquily invesiments)

Upon inital recognition, 1he Group can elact to classily imevocably ite equity Investments as equity
investiments designatad al fair valug through other comprehensive moome when they meel the
definition of equity uncer |AS 32 Finencigl Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading, Tne
claasification is delermined on an Instrument-by-instrument basa.

Gains and |osses on thess financial assels are never recycied 1o the stalement of profil or loss,
Divedends are recognised as other incomea in the statement of prafit or Ioss when the rignt of payment
has besn establishea, except when the Group benelits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the finencial asset, in which case, such gaing are recorded in other comprehenshse INComa,
Equity investments designated af fair value ihwough other comprehensive income are nof subject o
Empairment aAssessmant.

Financinl asseis at fak valve through profit or bsa

Financisl assats at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with nal changes in fair valua recognisad in the statemeant of profit or loss.

This calegory inciudas equity investments which the Group had not imevocably slected to classiy at fair
valua through other comprehansive income. Divdiends on the equity investments are also recognised as
athar income in the statement of profit or loss whan the right of payment has bean estabiisheag,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2., ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Deracognition ef financial asseis

A finoncd assol (o, whoro applizable, o part of a fnancial assol o part of & group of similes financial
assets) s primanly derscognised 8., removed rom 1he Group's consclidated statement of financisl
position) when:

. the nghts 10 receive cash flows from the asset have axpired, or

. the Group has transterad its rghts 1o receive cash Bows frem Ihe asasl or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash fiowe in full without material dalay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arangement; and aither (a} the Group has transterred subatantaly all the nsks
and rewards of the assat, or (b the Group has naelther fransterred nor retained substantisiy all
tha risks and rewards of the assst, but has transésred confrol of the assa.

Winen the Group has transferred ns rights 1o recelve cash fiows from an asset or has entered imMo a
pass-through arrengement, (1 evaluatas If, and to what extent, it has retained 1he risk and rewsards
af ownership of the assel. When (| has nelther transferred nor retained subsizntially all the risks
and rawards of the assel nor fransferred sontral of the osset, the Group conlinues fo recognise the
tranaterred assal 1o the extent of the Group's contnuing iImvcdvement. In thal casa, the Group also
recognises an associated kabiity, The franafered asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and ohiigations that the Group has retained.

Contawing evobvesmenl thal tekas the form of a guaranies over the iranslermed asset s measwed al the
kower of the original carmdng amount af the assst snd the maximum amount of conaidamation that tha
Group could be required io repay.

Impairment of financial assets

Tha Group recogrises an allowance for axpected credit losses [*ECLs") for all debt instrumanis not
held at fair walue through profit of loss. ECLs are based an the difference batween the contractual cash
flows duwe In accorcance with the contract and al the cash fliows that the Group expects to receiva,
discounied at an approximation of the orginal effective inferest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancemeonts that are integral to tha
contractual ferms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Impairment of financial asseis feontinyed)
Ganaral approact!

ECLs &re recognised In two siages. For credit exposures jor which there has not baen a significant
increase nocrodit rigk since Intial recognition, ECLs are provided for eredil losgses tnal rasult from
defaull ewenis thal are possible within the next 12 months (8 12-manth ECL), For those cradif
exposures. for which there has been a signifcant ncrease in credit tisk since invlial recognition, & loss
alowanos 18 required for credit Iosses axpecied over the remaining Me of the exposurs. mespective of
the timing of th defaull [a Ifetime ECL].

Al sach raporting date, the Group assesses whathar the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increasad significantly since nital recognition. When making the sssassment, the Group compares the
risk of a default cccurrng on the financial instrumant azs al tha reporting date with the rsk of a dafault
acourring an 1he financial instrument as &t the date of inital recogrition and considers reasonable and
supportable intarmation that s avaable without undue cost or effor, including hisicrical and forward-
tocking Information.

The Group considers a financlal assel in default when confraciual payments are 9C days past due.
Heowever, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when infermal
or exigrnal Infermation indlcates that the Group i unlikely to receive the cutstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancemants netd by the Group.

The Group assesses on & forward-looking basis the espected credit lnsses and the impairmeant
methodolegy appied dapends on whathar there has baen a signilicant increass in credit rsk.

A financial asset |3 written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contraciual
cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Decamber 2024
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)
Impairment of financial asseis feontinyed)
Ganaral approach feonlimundl
Dabt Investments at tair value through other comprehensive income end financis! assets at amortised

o8t st sublect to mpairmant usder the genaral approach and they are classifiod wilhin the fallewing
stages for meaaurement of ECLS excepl for trade recehvables and conlract asseta which apply the

simplitied approach a3 detailed balow,

Stage 1 - Financial ingtruments for whech cradit rigk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is measwred at an amount equal To
12-mantn ECLs

Etage 2 - Finangial Irstruments for which credit riek has increased significantly eince inltial

recognition but thal ae not credit-impaired financial assets and lor which the loss
allowarca |s measured at an amount equal to fetime ECLs

Stoge 3 - Firaneial aszats that ase credit-impaired at the reporting dote (but that are not
purchased or onginated credit-impairad) and for which the loss allowence B measured
at an amount equal to HMetime ECLS

Simpified approach

For trade receivables and contract assats thal do not contain a significant financing compaonent or
when tha Group applies the practical expadiant of not adjusiing the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simpliied
approach, the Group does not frack changes in credit risk, but Instead recognises a loss allowance
basad an lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has eslablishad a provision matrix that
ie basad on its historical cradit loss axperience, adjustad for forward-looking factors spacific to the
dabtors and the economic enviroomeant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Finaneial Nabilities
il recognilion g imeasurament
Financlal Babilities are classified, &t initfal recognilion, as financlal kabiltiss at falr velue through profit
ar lose, loans and barewings, payablos, of g8 dordvatives designated as hodging inatruments in an
elfectve hedge, &5 appropnale.

Al fancial Banlities are recognised nitlally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrewings and
payables, nat af dractly attributable fransaction cosis,

The Group's financial labilites Incluse frade and other payablas, an amount dus 1o the ultimate hotding
company, derwvative finansial instruments and intereat-basring bank and other bomowings,

Subsequent Heasurament

The subsagquent measuremant of financial liabllites depends on thelr classification as follows:

Financial latities ai amortised cost jtrade and offer payabies, and borrowangs)

After initlal recognition, irede and bdls payables, other paysbles and aceruals, and interest-beasng
borrowings are subsaquentty maaswrad at amornised cost, uging the effactive interes! rate method
unless the elfect ol discountng would be snmaterial, in which case they are stated al cost. Gains and
lnsses are ecognised n the statemant of prafit or Inss whan the labilites are derecognized as well a8
through the effective interest rate emortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculaied by 1aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and tees

or costs that are an integral part of the effective intarest ate. The sffective nterest rate amaortization is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or losa.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Derecognition of financial labilities

A firancal lobility 15 dorocognisod whon the obligation under the Rakdy s dischargod of cancobed, or
expires.

Whan an exksting fnancial lakslity iz roplaced by angthar from the samg lender on substantinlly ditfargnt
terma, or tha terms of an existing liabidity are substantially modified. auch an exchange or maddication i
treated as a darecogniton of the orignal ability and a recognifion of & new lability, and the difference
batween the respaciive carmydng amounts s recogmsed in the siatement of profit or loss,
Qffsetting of finamncial inatruments

Financial azssta and firancial liahllities are of=et and the net amount (s reported n the statemant
af financial position if thare k2 8 currently enforceanle legal rght to offeat the recognised amounts

and there 5 an inténticn o settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settls the labilities
simulianaousty.

Troaseury shares

Crweny eguity Enstruments which are reacquired and haeld by the Gompany or the Group (freasury shares)
are recogrised direcily in equity at eost. No gain or loss is recognisad in the siatement of profit or loss
on the purchase, seée, isaus or cancellation of the Group’s own equity insirumania.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable velue.

Cost |= determiéned on the first-in, firsi-out besis and, in the case of work in progress and findshed
goods, comprises direcl matenals, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads,

Nat realtisable valua ks based on estimated seding prices less enmy estmated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarrber 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash oquivalonts in the statement of inancial position comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and shart-term highly hquid deposits with a malurily of generally within three months that ane readily
convertible Imo known amounts of cash, sutject to an insignificant rsk of changes In value and held for
the purpass of meeting short-leem cash commitmants,

For the purpose of the consclidaled siatement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and sihart-larm deposls as debned abova, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Groun’s cagh managamant.

FProvizglons

A provision le recognisad when a present obfigation (legal o construclive) has arisen as a reaull of a
past event and it is probable that a future oulBiow of resources will be required to setile the obligation,
provided thal a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Whan the Group expects some or all of & provigian 1o ba reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate assel, but only when the resmbursament & wrjually certain. The expense relaling 1o a
provision i prasented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursemant.

‘When the efiect of discounting is material, the amount recognisad for a provision is the present valus
at the end of the reporiing period of the fulure expendilures expecied to be reguired to sellis ihe
abgation. Tha Increase in tha discounted present value amount arising fram the passaga of time is
included in finance costs In the statement of profit or losa.

The Group provides for warranties in refalion 1o the sals of passenger vehicles and commercial vehicles
for general repairs of dalects ocourring during the werranty perind. Provigions for these assurance-type

warrantes granted by the Group are initially recognised based on salas volume and past experence of
the kevel of repairs and returns, The warranty-ralated cost |s revised anmaally,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Income tax

Income 1ax composas currant and deforred fax. ncome tax rolaling to ifems recogrised outside profd
or loss is recoghised oulside profit or loss, either in ofher comprehenaive incoms or directly in eguiy,

Curngnt tax agepts and labities anre measurdgd at the amount oxpectod to ba recovered from of paid
to the taxation authortiea, based an tax rates {and tax lews) thal hove been eracied o substontvely
enacted by 1he end of the reporling perlod, taking inlo consideration inlerpretations and gractices
prevaling in the countries in which the Group operates.

Defarred tax 15 provided, using the liakdily merthod, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporling parod between the tax beses of assets and liablities &nd thelr carmying amounis for fingncial
raporting purposss.

Daterred tax liabilities ara recognised Tor all taxabie lemporary differances, excenst:

. whan the defarred tax lisbility anses from the initial riecognition of goodwill or an assat or liability
i@ transaction thal is not a business combination and, at the time of the franssction, aflecls
neither the accounting profit nor faxable profit or loss and does nol give rise o equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences; and

. Im respact of taxeble temporary differences assoclated with investmenta in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, whien the tming of the reversal of tha lemporary differences can

b eontrolied and it 1= probable that the temporary diferences will not revamsa in the foressaabla
future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Incame tax fcontinued)

Doforrod tox assets aro rocogriged for ol doductible temparary difforencas, and tho carry forward of
unused jax credits and any unused lax losses, Deférred fax assets aré recognised 1o the extant that it
is probable that taxable profit wit be avallable against which the deductible temporary differances, and
the carry lerward of unused tax crodis and unused [ax losges cam Be ullised, axcapt:

. whan the deferred Lax assal relating 1o the deduclible temporary differences arises from the
initiad recagnition of Bn asset or llability in a fransachon that ts nol a business combsnation and,
ol thia tima of tha traneaction, affecis naithar tha accounting profit nor taxable profit or lose and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

. In respact ol deductible temparary differences asacciated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and point ventures, delerred tax assels are only racognized to the extant that it s
probacte that 1he emporary differences will revarse in ine foresasable fuluse and taxabie profi
will be avallsble 2gainst which the femporarny differences can be utilised.

The carrying amoun? of defermed 1ax assels is raviewed at the end ol each reporting padied and redusad
to the extent that it is no longer probable thal sufficient taxable profit will be aveslable 1o alow all or part
af the delerred 1ax assel to be utlised, Unrecognised deferred fax assets are reassessad al the end
of each reporiing percd and ae recognisad to the extent thai it has becoms probable that sufficient
taxab'e profit will be avalzble 1o allow all or part of the daferred tax asset to ba recoversd.

Defermed tax asaats and labikbes ae maasured af the tax rales that are expected to apply 1o tha perod
when the assel s realised or the Eability is selfled, based on tax rates (and tax ‘sws) that have bean
enactad or substantivety enacied by the end of the reporting pericd.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labllities are offset if and only if the Group has & legally
enforceable right to sat off current tax assete and current tax labdites and the defarred tax assats and
deferred tex Eabiities refate to income taxes levied by the same texation autharity cn either the same
texabie entity or different taxable entities which ntend edther to sattle current tax labilities and assets
on & net basis, or to reslise the assels and seltle the liabdties smultansously, in each fuhwee period in
which signiicant amounis of daferred tax liabdities or assets are expacied to be satiled or recoverad,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Government grants

Govarmmant grants ane recogniosd al their fair value whore thero is roagsenablo assuranco that the grant
wil b# recenved and all attsching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates jo an expenss
item. it = recognised &s Income on a systematic basls over the periods that the cosls, for which it is
mtended 1o compensalo, ant expansed,

Whera thie grant relales to an assetl, the falr velus is credited 1o a defeed Income account and is
released to the statemant of prolit or loss over the expecied uselul e of the reiavant psset by egual
annual mslalmante or daduciad frem the carrying amount of the azsat and raleased fo the alatement of
profit or losa by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition
Ravenue from coniracts with cusfomens

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or sendces Is trensiarred
to fhe cuatomens at an ameunt that rafiesta the comsideration fo which the Group expests o be entitled
n exchange for those goods or saneces.

When the consideration in a confract includes a varlable amount, the amount of consideration is
eslimated to which the Grewp will be entilled in axchange for traraterring the goods or services to the
cusiormer. The varable constideation ks eslimaled at contract incapilon and constralned wnis [ |s highly
probable that 8 significart ravenue reversal in the amount of cumulstive revenue recognisad will not
occur when he associalad uncertalnty with the variable considaration is subseguently resolved.

Wnen the coniract containg a financing component which provides the customer with a significant
banafit of fimnancing the fransfer of goods of sandces 1o the customer for more than ane year, revenue
is measured at the presant valus of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
wouln be reflected in a separate financing tranaaction batwean the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When ihe contract coniains a financing component which provides the Group with a
significant fimnancial benelit for more than one yeer, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest axpenss accrefed on the contract labdity under the effective interest mathod. For a coniract
where lhe pericd between the payment by the customer and the transfer of 1he promised goods or
EANACES |6 one year of less, the transaction poca is not adjusted lor the sects of & signdizant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from conlracts with cusiomers jeanfinued)
(@)  Saleof incusiral products

The Growp manufactures and seils a range of passenger and commercial vehcies and related
key parts and camponents, including engines, cabins, axies, steel frames and gearboxes in 1ne
market, Dapanding on the contraciual arrangemant wilh cuslomans, sales are recognised whan
conirol of the products has transferred, being the time when the risks and rewards have bean
transforred, and the customer has (ull discration over tho channel and prece 1o soll the producte,
and thera s ne unfulfiled cbligation that could aftect tha cusiomer’s acceplance of the products,

Vehicles are often sald with volume rebates. Rebales are offsal against amounts payabis by the
customer, To estimate the varieble consideration for the expected fubure rebates, the mast likely
amount method is used for coniracts with a single-volume threshold and the expectad value
miethed |z used for contracts with mare than one volume thresheld, Tre selected meathod that
bt predicls the amount of vanabée consideration is primarily driven by the mamber af vohame
shresholds confained in the contract, The requirements on consiraining estmates of variable
corsidoration are appiad and & refund liability for the sxpactsd luture rabatas is recognised,

{6} Raondering of sarvices

me.lnmmmmmumdmlnmmﬁmmﬂlnm1ummm
rendened.

Rovenug from other souwrces

Rental incoma is recognised on a lime proporlion basis over lhe lease lerms. Variable lease payments
That oo not depernd onan indas o a rale ane recognised as incoma in the accounting Derod in which
they are incumed.

Ofhar fncome

Interest income |5 recognised on an acomual basis using the affective intarest method by applying the
rate that axactly dizcounts the estimatad fulurs cash reoeipts v the sxpacted (e of tha Ansncial
instrumant or a shorter pariod, when appropriata, 1o the net carrying amount of the Bnancal asset.
Dividend imcome ks recognized whan the sharsholders® right to recelve paymant has been establishad,

it is probable that the economic banafils assoclated with the dvidend will ow (o The Group and (he
amount of the dividend can be maasured reliably.

144 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited

223/327



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0(Ees974)
Oooooood

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Refund Habilitles

A rofund Faklity is recogrised for the obligation to rafund somo o all of tho congideralion recehvod (oF
recenalie) from a customer and i3 measured at the smount the Group wilimately expects it will have
to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund labllities jand the corresponding
change in the iransaclion price) al the and o sach reporting paniod.

Employes benefits
fal  Raetramant benefits

The Group's coniributions 1o various defined coniributicn pension schemes reguiaied by he
relavant municipal and provincial governmants in Mainiand China and a supplemental pansion
echema regulalec by OFM are expansed as incumad,

The Group's employess in Mainland China are covered by various defined contribulion pension
schemas regulated by tha relevant mumicipal and provincial governmanis in Mainland China
putauant 1o which the municiool and provineial governmeants undertake to asgums tha selrement
benedit obligations payeble 1o all emsting and retired employess.

I addition to the delinéd contribution penslon schemes regulated by the relevani municipal
and provincial governments in Mainlend China, tha Comgpany and mest of its subsidiaries and
joint wentures located in the Hubel Province [collectively referred (o as ihe "Hubel Entlises”] also
participate in a supplamantal pension echema regulated by DFM (the “Scheme®), pursuant to
which the Hubal Enlities are required to make contrioutions besad on certan percentages of the
wages ol the employess to the Schame on a monthly basls, whereas DFM undartaliss 10 assume
the supplemantal pension obbgations and other pension bensfits payable to the employees of
the Hubed Entities. The Group has no further oblgations for the supplemantal pansion obligations
and ather pansion benefits beyond the conbributions mada, The contributions to the Schama
mada by the Hubal Ertities are expansed as incumed.

Im accordance with the amangement in place and for administrative reasons, fhe contributions
1o the Schame are satted directly by each of the Hubsad Entities based on the amounts of thair
respactive contributions reguired 1o be borme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Employee benefits feontinued)

DFM has agrood with the Compary hat it shall continue 10 assume the supslamental ponsion
obigations and other persicn benslits payable to fhe amployess of the Hubel Entlities and the Hubel
Entltles shall continue to make coniributions to the Scheme, on a monthly basis, based on certaln
parceniages af e wages of thair emplovoss, DFM has also agreed te indarmnify the Campany aganst
anry losses that mey arise il the employees of the Hubel Entities make claima against the Hubel Entities
T theie supplemental penson obligations and oiher pension benafits under 1he Schame,

i Medical banafits

The Group's confributions 1o varous dafined contribution medical benefit plans organised Dy e
relavant municipal and provincial govemnmmants in Mainiand China and a supplemential medical
benefit plan organized by DFM are expensad as incurred,

The Group contributas on a monthly basis to various dafined contribuion medical beneflt
plans organised by the rslevant municipal and provincial governments in Mainland China. The
miunicipal and presincial governmants underlake o assume the medical benefit coligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.

Im addilicn, the Hubsd Enbties also parthcipate in @ supplemantal medical benafit plan regulated
by DFM pursuant to which the Hubal Entities sre regued to contribute cartain parcantagesa of
the wages of ther guallied employess io the plan on a manthly bass, and DFM underiakes o
assume the supplements! medical benaflit abligations payaDée to the qualifed ampioyaes of the
Hubal Entitize. Tha Group has no further obligations for supplameantal madical banafita beyond
the contributions made. The contributions made by the Hubed Entities are expensed as incumed.

DM hes agresd with the Company that DFl shal continue to assume the supplemsntal medical
banefit cbligations payable to the qualified employeas of the Hubeld Entities and such enfitias
shai conlinue to make moenthly contributions to the supplemantal medical benalit plan based on
certain percentages ol the wages of their qualiied emgioyees. OFM has also agreed to ndeminity
the Company against any logses which may arise if the employess of the Hubel Enfities claim
againat the Hubel Ertitias lor thelr supplemental medical banafits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continuad)
Employee benefits [continued)
el Termination and earfy rotiromant benefits

Terminalion and early refirement banefits are payable whenaver an employes's employment
Ig termenatod bafore the normal retiremaent date of whonawer an employes accepls volintary
redundancy in exchange tor these benefiis, The Group recognises termnation and early
tetirement benelits when if is demonstrebly commitled edther Lo ferminating the empioyment of
currani employeas accerding 1o & detaied kormal plan without the possibdiny of withdrawnl or o
prenviding lermination benelite az a resuit of an affer made te entourage voluntary redundamcy.

The Group Implamented termination and early retirement plans for certain guaified employess,
puraisant to which the Group has the obligations to pay early ratirement benadits on a monihly
basls to the relevant early retired employess unlil thase employaes reach thelr normal retiremeant
age at which lime they can draw their pension fram the governmantal regulated pension
schemss and the OFM reguiated supplemental pengion schamea,

Tha early retirement benslil obligations estimatad by the directors were fully aecrued and
recogrsad in the respective years' statement of prodit or loss when the formal eary etiement
pian was demanstrabhy commetiad,

Dividemds

Final dvidends proposec by the directars are classilied as a separata sliocaton of retained profits

within the aguily saction of tha statement of financtal position, untll they have besn approved by the

sharenalders in a genasal meeting. Whan these dividends have oeen approved by the shareholders and
declared, they am recognised as a kability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
2.5 PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT
In March 2024, the Group scquired a subsidiary from DFM, Since the subsldlary and the Group are
bath under contrad af DFM batare and atter tha scquisitian, 1he scquisition s considerad a3 a business
combination under common control, which iz mentioned in nate 40,

Restaled consclidated statemeant of profit or loss and comprehensiva Income

For the year endod 31 December 2023
Consolidated statement of profit or loss

and comprehensive income
As previously  Retrospective
Feparted adjustments As restated
AME milion RS milhon RME milon
(Loss)fprofit jor the year {6,813 110 {6,703}

Mat other comprahenalve income 1o be

reclassified 1o prafit or oas in subsequent

periods 14 - 11
Net other comprehansive logs that will not ba

reclassified 1o prafit or loas in subsaquant

peniods 4,448 = 4,448

Total comprehensive income for

the yaar {2.351) 110 (2.241)
Aftrinutable to:
Cwnars of the parant A48 109 557
Mon-controling interests (2.798) 1 {2,798}
— W ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

2., ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.5 PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT {continued)
Rasiaied consclidated siatement of fmancial position

31 Decomber 2023
Statement of financial position
As praviously Retrespective
reported adjustments As reslated

AME mliten RS rrilies BME rridiisn
Total assets 330,678 5,752 335,430
Tolal labilites 171,088 4,645 175,714
Equity attebutatls to cwners of the parent 152, 787 1,068 153,889
Mon-controling nterests 6,822 11 6,533
Total equity 169,600 1,107 160,716

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires managemant (o miake judgements, estimates
and assutplions that affect the reparied amounts of reverues, expenses, assals and llabilities, and thalr
accompanying disclcaures, and the disclosurs of contingont liabllities. Uncortainty about theso assumptions
and estimates could resull in culcomes that could requene a matera’ adustment 1o the carrying amounts of the
Da5e1% o kEbilitkes ailecied i e fuburg,

Estimation Uncertainty

Tha key assumplions conceming the huture and ofhar Kay sources of estimalion uncertanty af fhe end of tha
raporiing patiod, thal have a ssgrificant risk of calsing a matarial adiustmant to the carrying amounts of assels
and Eabililies within the noxd financial year, ore described Below,

Warranty provisions

Provisions lor warrantios grarted by the Group and its joint ventures ["JVs”) lor 1he passenger and
commaercial vohiclas sold arg recognised Dased on sales volume and pasi pxpanence of 1he cost of repair and

replacemant. The key |udgement adeoted by managemaent as part of the process includes dotarmining the
estimated wnil cost of warranly provisions for passenger and commarcial vehiclas sold,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Deferred lax assels

Significant management judgoment s required 1o dotermeng 1he amoum of delorred tix assals that can Do
recopnised, based upon the Bkely timing and level of fulure taxabls profils, together with future tax planning
stratepies.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assels fother than goodwill]

The Group assesses wheiher thera are any indicatoss of impalrment for all non-linencial assets (including
tha reght-of-use aggals) al the end of aach reporting padod. Indefinite life intangible assats are tested for
imparmant annually and at oiher times when such an indkcator exists. Other non-financial essets are tested
for impalfment when there are indicators that the caying smounis may not be recoverable. An impalrment
axists whan the carying value of an assst dr a cash-genarating unit exceeds it ecoverabla amount, which
I the higher of ifs el valee laes costs of digposal and ite valus in use. The calculstion of the falr value less
cesls of dsposal is besed on avalable data from bending sales transactions inan am's length transaction of
similer 2ssels or obsarvable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset, When valuz in
L=e caculalions are undertakan, managemeni must astimate the expecied fdwe cash llows from the assat or
eash-ganatating unit and ehaose a sullable discount rate in order 1o calcuiale the present valus of thosa cash
flows,

Classification betwesn Invastment preperties and owner-occupled properties

The Group detenménes whelhar 8 property gualiiies as an investment property, and has developed critera in
making that judgement. Immestment propedty B 8 propery held to eamn rentals of for capiial appreciataon or
both, Theralors, the Group considars whethar a property genarales cash flows lergely indepandently of the
other assats hedd by the Group. Some properties comprise A portion that s bald to eam rentals or for capdal
appreciation end another porton that ts neld lor use in the produciion or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separaiely under a finance
leasa, the Group accounts for the portions separately, If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
s an Investment property only i an insignificant portion s held for use in the production or supply of goods
or senices or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis o detsrming
whethar ancillary senvices are so significant that a property does not qualify as an imestment property,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation Uncertainty {continued)]
Impalrment of financlal assats

Tho loss allowances for finoncial assols e based on assumplions about the rick of defaull and oxpoected loss
rates. The Group uses |udgement n making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, besed on the Group's past history, exisling market condifions &s well &3 orward, Iooking estimates
a1 the end of sach reporting pariod.

Measurement of expected credil loss

Tha Group calculalos expected cradil leeses through defsull risk exposure and expecied credit loss rale, and
determines the expected crecit loss rate based on default probability and defaull foss rate. In detarmining the
expacied credil kss rate, the Group uses data such as intemal historical credit kees experience, and adjusts
historical data basad on currend condil'ona and forward-Jookeng information. When considering forward-iaoking
information, the indcators wsad by the Group include the risk of economic downtumn, the expecled increase
in unemployment rate, external marke! enviranment, technological environment and changes in cuslomer
situations, The Group regularty monitors and reviews assumptions related to the calcuation of expected credit
lxasas, In 2024, there was no significant change in the above estimation techniques and key essumptions,

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whethar goodwil is impaired &t least on an annual basts. This requires an estimation
of tha value in use of the cash-genarating units fo which the goodwil fa allocated. Estimating the wa'ue in usa
requires the Growp to make an estimale of the expected future cash fows om the cesh-generaling units and
alsn bo choose a suitahla discount rale in order (o calculate the present value of thoss cash flows.,

If the management revises tha gross profil rate adopted in the calculation of future cash flows of the cash-
generafing wnits and the revised gross profit rate |s lower than the gross profit rate currently edoplad, the
Group mey need to recognise an impairment koss of goodwill.

If the management revisas tha pre-tax discount rale adopted n discounting cash flows and the revised pre-
tax discount rate is higher than the discount rale currently edopted. the Group may need 1o recognise an
impairmant loss of goochwal,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation Uncertainty {continued)]
Impairment of inventories

Tho Group's inventarios are stated al tho lowor of coat and not roalisablo valug, Write-down ol Inventonas
o net realisable valus is made for thoss (dentified obsclete and slow-moving inventorias and inventoriss
with & cammying amourt higher then the net reatsabls value, The assesament of the estimated net reslisable
valug reguires mansgement’s ostimates which are influsnced by assumplions concarning fulure salas and
usage. and estimates in detarmining the appropnate level of inventory wiite-down agens icentified surpius o
chisolete (tema. Where the aclual outcome or expectation in future i diterent from the original estimate, such
diflerances will have an impact on the camying value of ivenionies and tha wiite-cown or reversal ol write-
down of inventories in tha paricd in which such eatimale hag been changed.

Development cosls
Devaiopmant costs are capitaleed in accordance with the accounting policy for research and development
cosls in nate 2.4 1o the financial siatements, Determining the amounis to be capilalised regquirgs management

to make assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates 1o be
applied and the expected perind of bansfits,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tho year anded 31 Decamber 2024

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For managament pumoses, The Group is orgarised inle businass wits based on their products and services
and has four reportable oparating segmants &3 follows:

{8}  Tha eommercial vehicles ssgmant mainly manufschures and sels commencial vahicles and thair related
ongings and other aulomatveg ports;

{bj  The passenger vehicles segment mainly manutaciures and sells passenger wehicles and thelr related
onginas and othar sutamotive pars;

e} The finencing services segment mainty pravides fmancing services 1o exlemal customears and
companies within the Group, Ravenue from fingncing services |8 mainly nterast revenue from loans;
and

{d]  Tha corporate and cthers segment mainly manufaciures and salls other aulomobile retatad products,

Managament monilare the resulis of the Group's operaling segments separately fod the purpoes of making
decsicns aboul resource aliocation and perlormance assessment, Segment performance (s evaluated based
on repartabie segment profitfiass, which iz @ measure of adjusted profitfioss before tax fram continulng
cperations. The adpusted profitioss before tax from continuing operations s measwrad consistently with the
Group's profit batore 1ax fram continuing oparations except share of prafits and lossss of joint venturas and
B3500ates.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with refererce io the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties a2 the then prevailing market prices,

A= tha chief operating deciskon maker of the Group considers that most of the Group's consolidatad revenus
and resulis are atirbutabie ic the markel in Malniand Chéna and the Group’s consolidated essats are mainly
located imside tha PRC, no gecgraphical information ia presented.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no revenue from transactions with a sing'e external customer
amounted to 0% or more of the Groun's tobal revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha year ended 31 Decamber 2024
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
Yoar endod 31 Dacember 2024
Commerciol Passenger  Financing  Corporate

vehleles vahiclas seryices  and athers  Ellminatian Tatal
AME million AME mifion  AME mifion AME milian AME milfion  AME miltion

Segment revenue (ol 5

Sales 1o pxternal customars 47,117 52,118 5,439 1,523 - 106,197
Intarsegment saleg 103 178 180 433 {B05) =
Total segment ravenus 47,220 52,207 5,610 1,956 {BE5) 106,187
Segment results [2,344) (1,636) 361 [T&2) 1,026 (2.435)
Interest income 425 200 - 2387 12,1100 1,002
Firance expensas "7 211) m 1678 B
Share of profils and losses of;

Joint vanturss 528 {2 = - - a8
Aszociales [108) 258 425 a4 - &7
iLosspprofit bafore incoma tax [1,669) {1,3m1) o9 1053 45 (1,183}
Segment assils 70,733 90,443 166,627 102,178 (34,530} 325,052
Sogment labillies 49,824 52,007 117,001 45,542 {25,019) 170,255
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
Yoar endod 31 December 2024 (continued)
Commerciol Passenger  Financing  Corporate
vehicles wehicles seryices  ond others  Eliminatian Total
RMB million RMB miflion AME milion RMEB milion AME million  AMB million

Other segment Information

Imgaitmen! ogges af

MOn-Curmgnt nssats 17 14 - 4 - 35
hrgaiment insses of

firancial assels 20 {179} BO5 BA - B3
Depreciation and amortization 2,060 4,215 132 414 - 6,621
Ivesiments in joant veniures 2,458 33,552 = = - 36,011
Investments in assoclates 532 6,203 8,577 1090 - 16,402
Capial expendiiue® 3,444 6,616 879 3,726 - 17,765

* Capital sxpondturs corssts of additions 1o proparty, plant and squipmant, invesimant proparties and intang|bis
assats incledng ass#ls from the acaquistion of a subgidary,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
Yaar endad 31 December 2023

Commencial  Passanger Financing  Corporsta
vehicles veicks sondco  and othors  Elminalion Tetal
Rostatod)  (Restatedy  (Rostaled)  (Aestaled)  (Reatated)  (Restated)
AME rrdlion  RME mliot  AME milian - RME milian AME mllion  RIME grilliont

Segment revenue fnate 51
Sales to extemal cusiomers: 48,419 42,383 6,114 1,467 = 99,383
Intersegment salss 119 158 105 137 (20 -
Total ségpran ravens 40,538 42,542 6,219 1,604 [B20) 09 383
— E——— E——— S S
Segment results {4,108 [5,563) 2,083 (B76) 2,081 {7.,183)
Interest ncome 22 253 - 2,136 2, 165) T46
Firance expensas {81 (23 i4) {1,145 141 {1,112y
Shara of profits and kosses ol
Joint ventures 245 269 - = = Bi4
Aszociales 126) (32) 808 o0 - BOT
{Loss/profit batore income tax [3,451) {6,096} 2 pa7 a7 a7 (6,238)
E—E—— —  — — ————
Segment assets 74621 B3.077 161,063 100,920 (T&,151) 336,430
Segrnond ligbilities 52,060 47,546 110,580 42047 (6525 175,714
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
Yaar endad 31 Dacember 2023 (continuad)
Commencial  Passanger Financing  Corporsta
vehicles vehicks sofvices  and othars  ERminalion Total
Aostatod)  (Restatedd  (Postaled)  (Aestalod)  (Reastated) (Restated)
AME miion VS millionr RS millen  RME milian AME mwlion RIS imallian

Other segment information

Impairmen: losaes of

e -curtent assats 191 104 - 23 - 318
brsairmend osses ol

financial assets 244 () 1081 48 - 1,144
Depreciacion and amortisation 2021 2paT 113 282 = 5,283
Iesimants in jint ventures 2570 36,244 - - - 38614
Invesimants in associates 5dd 2 480 0BG 2981 - 16,611
Captal expendiurs 2,733 B4 36 1,583 = 12,788
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Aranalysis of revenus is a5 follows:

2024 gn2a
BMEB miliion FRME milan
{Rostaled)
Revenue from principal operations 106,197 99,383

a) Disaggregated revenue information
2024 2023
RMB million RME rmillan
{Restated)

Types of goods or sanices

Commercial volicles 4T 117 49,410
Passenger vehicles 52,118 42,383
Financing senioes 5,439 6114
Corporale and olhors 1,623 1.487
Total 106,187 99,383

158 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS ([CONTINUED)

a] Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

An gralysis of ciher Inceme ang galns s as follows:

2024 2023

RME rmilifon PN milian

{Rastated|

Govermment grants and subgidies. 3,266 1,163

Interast incoma 1,002 Ta6
Dividands trom fnancial assets af far vahse through othir

comprahansive income 601 1013

Employes dispatch fees recetved from the joint veniures 196 211

Technology licensing feas 114 -

Others: 1,837 1,028

Total other incamse and geins 7,016 4,161
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6.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Tha Group's less balens income tax is armved al:

Coat of inventories sold

Intereg! axpenss far irancing sonices
fincluded in coat of sale)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of rght-of-use assats

Depreciation of invesimant properties

Amortisaton of intangible assels

Resaarch and development costs

Impakmant of items of properly, piant and aquipment

Impalrment of intanglble sesats

Lease expenses nol inchuded o he
measuremant of lgase liabilikes

Auditor's remuneration

Employes benafil axpense (excluding dineciors’
and supervisors' remunaration fnode Gl

Foreign exchange differences, net

Impakrmant losses on long-term investments

Impairenent of financial zssets, net

Writa-down of inwenlones io net resksable valua

Product warmanty pronisson

Dividend incoma from financial assets at fair valua
trrough other comprehansive Income

Interest incoma

Gain on dsposal of lems of property, plan and
equipmant and intanglble assats, inveatment
propety and ofher long 1erm assets

Royalty fee

160 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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BB,081

4,268
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1,883
4,852
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FBME milian

BO,516

3373

1,472
4,571
128

120

10,553

1144
426

1.013
746
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7. FINANCE EXPENSES

Ar analysis of fmance axpanses is a5 follows;

2024 2023

BME miliion RME milian

{Rostated)

Interest on bank loans and other loans 583 662
Interast on leasa lisbilites (Note 16) 120 113
Mot exchange losses from Bnoncng aotivies 134 337
Taotal 837 1,112

8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION

Directors” and supansors’ remuneration fof the year, dsclosed pursuant 1o the Listing Rules, section 3B3(1) (),
{h), ie) and () of the Hong Kong Companias Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companias (Disclosura of Infarmation
abouf Banafits of Directors] Regulation, is as follows:

Group

2024 2023

RMB thousand AMB Hrousand

(Rastated)

Foes 458 450
Ohar amaluments:

Salaries 1,582 1,378

Discrafionary boruises 3,613 3477

Eslimated moneay valua of other banalits 408 303

Employer's contribulion 1o a rtirement benail schama 492 353

Subhtatal 6,082 5512

Tatal 6,520 5962
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8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION ([CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The lees pald to independent non-executive drectors during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

RME thousand FAMB thousand

(Raslated)

Leung Wal Lap, Philip 182 177
2oy Cingsheng 100 100
Hu Yiguang 178 1
Total 458 450

Thare wena no other emoluments payable to the independent non-axeculive direclors during the year
{2023 Mil).

162 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION ([CONTINUED)

(b} Executive directors, a non-executive director and supervisors

2024
Employer's
Estimated  contribution ts
Descrationary moneyvalueed & retirement Tatal
Feas Salwies bonuses  cfhes banelils BerwBlacherme  mmuneralion
AME thowsand RS Dourand  AWE Mousand  AME thousarnd AU Bowgand  RME thousand
Execubive diraclors:
Yarg g - us W il T8 |
Zou Triping
[Bpocmied on 21 Junk
) - 8 184 k| 28 57
Yol Iheng - o4 k| 1 B B15
Subtotdl ) - 1] B 1,15 . Fall ) i 2313
Hon-axstitive drecion:
Ly arrorg
{appointad on 4 Decamber
X0 - 13 10 a k< n
Supervisors:
Hz Wl ‘muperisor chairman - 1 149 ] ") 1480
Jndn - ni b i bi | 1,18
Thixi we
(Bpponted on 25 August
Hizd) - il ani ] -] nt
Subldnl = 725 2368 154 168 fhead
Totd - 1552 g3 405 an2 B2
— — — — — —
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8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION ([CONTINUED)

[b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and supervisors (continued)

2023
Emgicror'y
Eromated  conributon o &
Decrstorary  money value ol refrarent Tolat
it Saanias bomsps  oltr benefs  benofilschems  nemunEatn
RS hopand RIS Mocard AU Mo B ey AME Moang RS Mousan
Execubive diraclors:
ThuYafang
freteet on F November
€T - ] &0 /] 19 15
Yang Oing - bl [ ] i) 1,040
ol Treng - 5 L &1 B o
Subtota - 5] 1,64 151 1] 15
Hon-axstitive drecion:
Huang Wel
freagrad on 17 May 2025 3 " ] 15 18 175
Supervisors:
He e [supenssor chamman) - &3 1,042 ] n 1617
dn &n - b= T8 5] L1 d 1,158
Subiial - T 1,788 134 54 2813
Tolat - 1478 341 03 353 s5n2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION ([CONTINUED)

Thare was no arangement under witich @ drecion oF 8 supenyvisor walved or agreed 1o walve any ramunaration
during tha yaar ended 31 Dacambear 2004

No relirermant benafits or termination benafils ware paid to directors or supervisors dusing the year ended 31
Decernber 2024, Mo conaiderations wore provicad 16 third porties far makeng avalable dirschors’ serices (2023:
Sarme),

During he year, no loans, guasi-loans or other dealings were enlerad into by the Company in favour of
directors of supervisors (2023 Samal,

No significant Iransactions. Mrangamants and contracts in rlaton 1o he Group's busingss fo which the
Company was a party and (n which & director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indiractly, subsizted at the and of the year or &t any time during tha yaar.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
Tha five highesi paid employaes during the year did not melude disecions (Z023: no directors). delais o

whose ramuneration are set out in note 8 sbove, Detalls of the remuneration for the year of the five [2023; frve)
righes: pald employees who are neither a diecior nor a supervisor of the Compary ere as follows:

2024 2023

AME thousand AME thouzamnd

{Restated)

Salaries, alipwances and benefits in kind 4,318 3,115
Bonuses 7,156 7858
Pensicn echama contributions 353 BSE
Tatal 11,627 11,831
— —
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

Tha number of non-director and non-supervisar highest paid employees whose remuncration fesl within the

tallewang Bands is as talows:
Humber of employeos
2024 2023
(Restaled)
RMB2,000,001 1o RMEZ2,500,000 3
RMB2.500,001 to RMB3I.000,000 2 -
RMEB3,000,001 to AMESI, 500,000 - 1
Tatal 5 &
10. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
024 2023
RME millfon RME milan
{Restatad)
Revarsal of Impairment Iosses of trade recaivables 83 {106}
Impairmien| [os5es of olher recaivables ] 142
Impairment insses of (0ans and rmceiabies rom HnEncing serdces e 31
Othars B7) 177
Tatal B3 1,144
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For ha year ended 31

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

2024 2023

AME rmilifon FME milian

{Restated)

Current incoma tax 17 1,481
Deferred ncoms lax (458) {1,816}
Income iax expense for the year 59 465

Under the PAS Comporats Income Tax Law and the respective ragulations, the corporate incoms tax lor the
Company and its subsidiaries is calculaled al a statutory rale of 25% or a prefarential rata of 15% whars
applicable, on their estimated assassabls profis for the year bassd o the existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect tharect.

Mo provision lor Hong Kong profits tax (tax rata; 10.5%]) has been made as the Group had no assessable
profils ansing in Hong Kong duiing the year.

Delerrad tox assels are mainly recognised in respect of temporary differences relating to certain fulure
deduclitie axpansas lor the purpose of corporate ncome tax.

Accosding o 1AS 12 Income Taxes, delerred tax assels and liabiliies are measurad al the tax rales that are
expacted (o apply to the perod whan the assots are realised or the lisbilibes ore settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconcilation of the income lax axpense aptlicable 1o 1085 befong ncome tax al the statutory corporate
Incoma tax rate in tha PRC in which the Company and the majorty of its subssdianes ars domicilad to the
income tex expense al the Group's effective income lax rate, and a reconcilialion of the applicable rate {i.a.,
the statulory corporate incom tax rate) to the elfective income tax mato, are as Tollows:

2024 2023

AMEB millfon FME milian

(Reslaied]

Logs balord incoms 1ax {1,163) {6,238}
Tax at the statutony tax rate of 25% (2025: 255 (281) {1,558)
Lower tax ratels) for specific provinces or enacted by local authority 146 503
Profits and kosses attributable to [oint ventures and asscciates (27T} {330}
Expanses not deductible for tax 12 27
Tax losses not recognised 1,219 2,485
Additicnal deduction (747) 15E4)
(Hhears []] {107}
Tax charge al ihe Group's eflectiva rale 59 465
e

Tne share of tex atiribulable 1o A3scciales and Nt veniures amouning 1o RMBI168 mslkon (2023 AME202
million) and AMB 109 million (2023 BME128 millon), respectively, |s included In *Share of profits and losses of
Jodnt ventures and associates” In the consoidated statement of prafit or losa.

Pillar Two income taxes

The Group s within 1he scope of the Piar Two model rules. The Group has applied the mandalory exception
o recognising end disciosing inlormation about delarred lax asseis and lebilitles arsing fom Plllar Twae
income fexes, and will account for the additional Pillar Twio Inccme faxes as cument tax when incurred. Pillar
Two legisiation has been enacted or substantively enacted but not et in effect as at 31 December 2024 in
cerfain jurisdictions in which the Group operalas.

Tha Group has aseessed its potential exposure based on the Informalion avallable regarding the financial
porformance of the Group In tho current year. As such, it may not be ontirely represaniative af fulure
circumstances. Based on the assessmant, the Group's effective tax rates in all jurisdictions |n which it
operates are above 15% and the directors of the Company are not currently awera of any circumstances
umder which they mghl change. Therelore, the Group does nol expect polental exposwre to Pillar Two “top-up®
taxes, The Group continues to follow Pillar Two leglslative developments, as more countries prepare to enact
thee Pillar Two mocal niles, to evaluate the potentisl futurs impact on ifs financisl statemsants.

The subsidianias incorporated In Hong Kong, Russia and Sweden are subject to corporate income tax at rates
of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%), 20% (2023 20%) and 20.6% (2023: 20.6%), respectively.

168 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Tha movaments in defermed tax liabilites and assels duning the year are as follows:
Corsolidated stalament

Consolitaled stalemant af praf ar lass and statemant
of financial position of comprahensive insome Year

Mis gt 31 December ended 31 December
2024 2003 2024 2023
RS milion RS milon AME aulifor RS malion
(Fessatin) (Resstatid)
Ditoerad] lax aseets
Aaoela impainment 2008 1831 mm &1
hecrued experses T4 681 {84 =k ]
Waminy provsions m at 4 5]
‘Wagea payabia B1 L] -] 36
T leases 1,730 1477 (253 8
Inarest recesed in Bovance 313 a7 154 12
Othera 384 a1 L] £0
Gross dedarred lax assata 5572 5154 {818 ey
Diererred tax labiltios
Fair valug adustmants arising from acquisition of subediaries [184) 197) (k5] @1)
Gowammend granis (33 30 & {Bi
Ghanges in the fair vale of lnancal assats at fur value 83 (78} (862 xx)
Others [154) L] ] 5
Grods cefernad i Nabikties (B78) {1.80) 1,013 THI
Fepresentad by
Derfermed tax credied fo the consolidated statement of profe
o losy {458 {1,048)
Deterrad tax cradited 1o the cormslidativd statemant o otter
COMprenensive ncoms 873 1478

11,43) 462
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

12. DIVIDENDS
2024 2023
RMEB million FME milian
Inberim - RMES cents (2023; M) per ordingry shang 413 -

Resoiution Tor distibubion of an interim drsdend of FMMB413 millian (RVE0.05 per share) based on the intenm
rat profit for 2024 attributable to shareholders was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
armual genaral mesting hedd on 28 August 2024 and was paid in October 2024 to shareholdars,

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic samings per share amounis is basad on fhe profit for the year aliributable to
ordinary eguity holders of the parant, and the weighled average number of ordinary ehares of 8,260,078,000
(2023: 8,512,533, 783) cutstanding during the year, as adjusted to maflach he fghts Izsue during the year.

The Group had ne polaniially dlulive ordinary sharas in issua during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023,

The calculation of basic and diluted samings par shara ara based on;

2024 023
AME miliion FME millan
[Pz leiired)
Eamings
Prafitffass) attribulakds 1o ondinary aguity boldars af tha parent B8 {3.887)
Number of shares
2024 2023
milifon milian
{Restatec)
Srares
Weighted averags numbser of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year 8,260 8513
Eamingariloss) per share AMBO.70 Cont  FMB (45.66) Cont
: - .

During this year, 45 66400020021 @ 313, 868 Depurchased shars wees canceind by 1ha Company,

170 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited
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Notes to the ﬁhmﬁlﬁf@tﬂmnﬁt&unﬁnugﬂ)"

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 Decembar 2024
Construction
Bulldings Equipment  in progress Total
AMB million  AME miflion  RMB million  RMB million
At 1 denuary 2024;
Coat {as regtated) 10,635 35,690 3,787 50,012
Accumulated depreciaton
end impairman| (a3 restatad) [3,729) {21,337) (5) {25,071}

Mat carrying amount fas teatated) 6,806 14,353 3,782 24,941

Al 1 January 2024, net of socumuiated

depreciation and impalrment 6,606 14,353 3,782 24,841
Additions. 70 2,150 6,657 8,477
Dispozals [157) [547) - (T04)
Raclassification 881 5,102 {5,663) -
Transler ko intangible assats - - (204) {204}
Dipreciation provided

during the year 310 {3,9548) = {4, 26:8)
impairment N (18) = (18}
Transfer to invastment properties {28 i (10} (a8}

Al 31 Decamber 2024, net af

accumulaied depreciation and
irmpairment 6,904 17082 4,842 28,588
E— — S—— | f———

Al 31 Deceniber 2024:

Coat 10,058 37,842 #,546 52,446

Accumulated deprecirton and
imposrmant o4 (20,760) " 123,869)
Mot carrying amount 5,064 17,082 4,642 28 588
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarrber 2024

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

31 Dacamber 2023
Conairuction

Buildirgs: Equipment I peograss Total
AMIS i FRIAS i AME miliom BME rmiilion
(Restated] [Freatated) (Restated) IRestated)

A1 January 2023
Gosl 10,093 30,303 3,03% 43,530

Accumilated depreciptn

end impairmant (3.344) {18.255) (1) {21,800}

Mat carmying amount 6,749 12,143 3,038 21,830

At 1 January 2023, nal of sccumuiated

depraciation and impairment B.740 12143 3,088 21,930
Additions 770 5,461 803 7,034
Digposals (185] (heey (25} {0}
Dispreciation provided

during tha year (360} (2,013 - {3,273)
impairment (25 (veay ) (136}
Transter to investmant properties 1143 - - 43

Al 31 December 2023, net of
dccumilatod depreciatian and
impairmeant B.B0E 14,353 3,782 24,841

A1 31 December 2023:

Caat 10,535 35,090 3,787 50,012
Accumulated depraciation
snd impaimant (3,728 {21,337} i5) {25,071}
et carrying amount 6,808 14,353 3,782 24 541
— . — —
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Tha Group detarmines whalhar thars is any indication thal an assel may Do impered ol 1he balance sheet
data. I there is an indication of impairmant, the Group estimates its recoverable amount and perlofms an
impalrment test, The recoverabse amount 5 the higher of the ‘air valwe of the cash-generating unit, net of
dispesal costs, and tha presant value of the cash-ganerating unil's astmatied fuluns cash flows.

The Group récognisad an impalment provigian for non-current assets of AMB22 milion (2023; RAMB318
million) during the year,

Tha Group®s calculation of the present value of the projected future cash flows was 5 to B yeara, and the
range of fhe pre-tax discount eale was 14% 1o 18%, Other key sssumplions used by the appraiser included
fhe progectad sales wolurme of the products of the assat groups 1o which thay belonged, the lulure unit price
of the salee, the growih rate, the arojected gress profit margine, and the expenze ratios, ete. The Group
determined thasa key assumptions Dased an the operating results of these assst groups n previous years, the
leved of the industry and the forecast of the manket devesopmant.

Beead on the recoverabls amounts determined by the present value of the estimated future cash flows as
described above, e Group mads impalrment provisiens of RMB18 million (2023 RMB188 million) and RMB4

million {2023: RMB120 million) for PPAE and Imangile assels, respectively, In respect of these assat grouos
during the year.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

31 Decembar 2024

Carrying ameunt a1 1 Jamuary (43 reslated)
Additions '

Disposas

Depreciation provided during the year
Traneder from property, plant and equipment

Carrng amount at 31 Decamber

31 December 2023

Carrying amount at 1 Janmuary

Additions

Disposas

Depreciation provided during the year
Transfer from property, plant ang equipment

Carryirg amount af 31 Doecembor

174 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited

Bulldings  Lond use rights Total
RME miifian RMB miilion RMB miilion
2,854 1,490 4,344
14 7T 21
(12 - 13
(12z) (39 (161)
36 - 36

2,770 1,458
{Rastalad) {Rastatad| [Raslated)
1,871 BZ7 2,858
1,000 [3:13) 1,885
{33 - 183
{77 ] 194)
143 - 143
2854 1,480 4,344
|
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16. LEASES
The Group as a lessea
The Group nas lease contracts for varlous items of leasakold lang and land use rights, bulldings and
aquipmant and vehizlags used in itz cperations, Ganerally, the Group is reatrictad from assgning and
subasing the leased assots culsice the Group,
fa)  Right-of-uge assels

The carrying amounis of the Group'a right-ol-use assats and the movements during the yaor &ne o

Todlovs:
Leasehald
land and land Eqjuipment
use rights® Bulldings  and vehiclas Total
AME milliorr  RME million  AME milllon  RMB milllan
As at 1 January 2023 4,183 617 2 4,808
Addtiong 162 as7 44 563
Disposals (elel] (64 i) (135)
Depreciation charge {167) 1264) () (230)
Impairment - - (2 2
As at 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024 (as restabed) 4,108 G456 az 4,786
Addtions 52 535 58 645
Rewizion of a leasa team
arising from a change In the
non-cancallable parind of & sase [135) [38) 3] {11a)
Dapreciation charge [141) {237) 31) (a0G)

Ag at 31 Decambar 2024 3,884 006 &3 4,853

i The Geoup has @ land lsase arrangemant with the PRG govednment.
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessea (continuad)

bl Lease llabilities

Tha canrying amount of loase kabitios and tho movoments duning 1ho year are as follows:

2024 2023
RME million BME milian
{Reataled)

Carrying armount &t 1 January 2,168 2238
New loages 645 460
Digposals 1&7) 218)
Accretion of interast recognised during the year 120 113
Payments (578} {225}
Camying amount at 31 Decembar 2,270 2168
Anatysed into:
Current portion a2 332
Mon-cumond portion 1,848 1.838

—_—
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessea (continuad)

fe)  The amounis recognised (i profif or lass in relafion to feases are as follows:

2024 2023

RME rmilifon RME rmilion

(Raslated)

Dapreciation of right-of-use a3381s 409 439
Interagl on lease llabiities fnofe 7} 120 113

Expanse relaling fo shori-lerm laases and low-value
agzate (neluded in cost of sales, seling and distibution
‘awnpensas, adminiEtrative expenses and ather expanszes) 412 288

Impalrment of right-ol-use assets -

Total amaount recognised in profit o loss 941 B42

Thie total cash outfhow for leases and fulure cash cutflows relating to leases that have not yet
commenced ame disolosed in nate 41 (o the financial stabtemants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 Decembar 2024

Patents, Research and
lieenses and Custamar devalopmant
tradomarks relationships cost Others Total
AME milfion  AMBE milffon  AME millfon  AME million  RMB million
AL January 2024:
Cost jes restated) 11,100 1,388 3,574 2,708 18,767
Accurmnulated amortisation
and impairmant
(@s restated) (5.785) B33 = (1.608) [8,236)
Mat canrying amacunt
[as raatated) 5,205 555 3,574 1,007 10,531
— — e — O —

A1 1 January 2024, net of

accumulated amertisaton

and impaiment 5,305 555 3,574 1,087 10,531
Additions i ] - 5,185 3ze 5507
Disposas (1 = [RLY] (1) 2
Reclassdicaton 3,200 - [3,966) THE -
Amoriisaton provided

during the year 11,837 {83) - (263) {1,883
Impairmiznt during the year = = = (4 ]
A131 Decembar 2024, net of

accumulaled dopraciation

and impairment 8,840 472 4,773 1,944 14,129
AT 31 December 2024
Cost 14,308 1,388 4,773 3,804 24,273
Accurnulated amortisatlon

and impaimant [7,368) 216 - (1,860) {10, 144)
Nat canrying amount 6,940 472 4,773 1,044 14,129

Datai's of tha impalment of intangible assets ars ==l oul in nofa 14,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
31 Dacamber 2023
Resaarch and
Patants Customar  devekapmant
and liconses  rolationships cosls Oihos Total
RMEmilon  RMEB mifon  RMEmfan  RME mikon  RME millon
{Aesiaied) (Restated) (Restated) {Restated) (Rastated)
A1 deruary 2023
Gost frsh 1,388 4815 2,300 15,262
Aecurmnulated amartisation
and impairment 1£.522) {743 = {1,403 16.674)
Nt canrying amaount 3,237 639 3815 807 §,588

Al 1 January 2023, net of
accumulated amartisation

and mpaimment 3,237 630 3,815 sy 8,580
Additions ATd - 2837 427 3,738
Disposa's @1 - (178 4} (203
Redlassficaton 2,832 - |2.800) a -
Amoriisation provided

during the yaar {1.158) B4 - {2309 1,473
Impairmant during the year 119 - - (1] 120
Al31 December 2023 5,305 5EE 3574 1,087 10,531

Cost 11,100 1,368 3574 2,705 18,767
Accumulated amartisation

and impaimant {5,705 (B33 - {1.608) {B.238)
Het camying amount 5,305 855 3,574 1,007 10,551

————————— g .

2024 Annual Report 179

258/327



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0(Ees974)
Oooooood

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

18. GOODWILL
2024 2023
RBME million BME rillian
Cost:
At 1 denuary and at 51 December 3,169 A, 160
Ikt
A1 1 deruary and af 31 December 14 14
Het camying amount:
Al 1 Jenuery and at 31 Decembear 3,155 3,155
e e
Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquirad through buginess combinations is allocated to the following cagh-gandgraling units for
Imparmant testing:
Composition and basis of the
CGU or the CGU group Business segrment and basis

DongFang Aulomobila Tha business which manwlaciures and  The assel growp is allocated o the
Co,, Lid, ["DFACT salps commersial vehicles and aulo  commascisl vehicles segment basad
paris. the cash inflows from which o 1ts principal business &nd the

are baslcally ingependent of those  mansgemant planning of the Group

fram oines assals or easel Qroups
Dangleng Commecial The business which manwlactures and The assel group is allocated to the
Viehicles Co,, Lid. sales commersial vehlches and aule  cominencisl vehicles segmeant based
["DECY") pans, the cash inflows from which  on ils principal business and the
are basieally independent of those  mansgemeni plannng af the Group
from other assels oF aaset groups
Dongleng Special Tha busingss which mamnutactures and The assel group I8 aliccated to the
Commercial Vehicla sales speclal commercial vehicles  commercisl vehicles segment Dased
Ca,, Lid, and suto parts, the cash inflows  on its principal business and the

fram which are basically indepandent  management planning of the Group
of thosa from other aesats or asset

groups
Dongleng Motor Finance  The business which provides financing Tne asset group is allocated to the
Ca,, Lid. sanvices, the cash mflows from which  financing service segment basad
are baslcally indespendent of those  on (ts principal busingss and the

[ram olher assels of assel groups managemen] planming ol the Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024
18. GOODWILL ([CONTINUED)
Impairment testing of goodwill [continued)
Compaosition and basis of the
CGU or the CGU group Business segment and basis
Dorglong Mator The business which provides Tho assol group is allocated to the
Irmmatmant (W) investrnant and advisory services,  financing service sagmant based
Ca,, Lid, the cagh inflows from which are  on itg principal business and the

pasically indopendgnt of these from  managemant planning of tha Graup
ather assats of assel groups

Danglang Auto Finance  The Dusiness which paomaces financing  Tha assel graup is allocatad to fha
Co., Lia, services. (e cash nfiows lrom which  financing service segment based
are basically ingependant of those  on (18 principal business and the

from oiner assals of gagel groaups managemant planning of the Group

The segmants 1o which sach GGLU belongs ars consiglant with prior years.
mwmmmwmﬁmqmmmcmmmuwmmmn

based on linancial budgels covering a five-year poriod approved by senlor-manogement, and the koy
assumations in the goadwil impaiment are a3 follows:

2024
Termna: growth rate 2.0%
Forecast perod growth rate (33%)-TE%
Discoun! rate 14%-15%

The following Susirates the key assumplions made by management in getermening the cash flow projections
for the purposae of impairment testing of goodwill

Terminal growth rate = Tha tasminal growth rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
radavant assel groups.

Rovanue growth rato - Maragomont daotermined tho revenuo growth rale for tho five-year detabed lorocast
period based on Ristorical expanance and projections of maks! developments,

Discausnt rate - The discount rale used Is a discount rate that reflects specific risks of the relevant assat
GrOUpS.

Burigated gross marging - Tha basis for datermination is based on tha average gross margings achisved in he
year prior 1o the budgat yaar, with an appropriate increass in thosa awerage gross margns based on expectad
afficiency impravarmants and expaciad markel developmants,

Trna amounts allocated to the koy assumptions for ihe above assel groups ane consistent with the Group's
higtorical experience and axtemal information.

2024 Annual Report 181

260/327



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E5974)
Oooooood

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2024 2023
RME mitfian RME rmilian
{Restated)
Share ol nol assels 36,011 38,514
Particulars of the Group's malterial point ventures are as foliows:
Particuars of Flaca of Parcesdage of
paid up registration Ownership  Wobing  Profit  Perceslage of
Hame capital held ard business inerest  power  sharing  Principal aclivities
Congpleng Modor Co., Lid, ALE1E, 700,000,000 PRCMainknd China 5 5 5y Manufacion and sale of acfomalie
BFL parts s componants
Dengizng Paugect Dilroén ANET 000000000 PR Mainkied China e 5 5 Wanufactus and sale of autmatie
Bulomakals Co., L8 parts a7 componants
DPCAT)
Coogleng Hondo Actcmobéls LS01 448,000,000  PRCMainnd China = 1) 5 Mantactors and sale o automolne
G, Lick [DHAC") farts e componants

T abowe Intarass in joant waniures are airectly hald by the Company,

DFL. CFCA and DHAC ams considered malerial joint veniures of the Sroup, engaging In the supply of vehicle
parts companants and are aceounied far undar aguly method,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Tha Tofowing table dlustrates the summarised fnancial information of 1he material jint ventures inciuding DFL,
DPCA and DHAC, adjusted lor any diferences in accounting policies and resenciied 1o the carying amount in
the financisl statemants:

DFL DPCA DHAC

el w3 bl it e 02
AME milion  AVE mllon  AME milion  AWE mlion  AME milion  FUE milon

Cash &nd cas pauivalns 13,240 44,040 84 440 12,561 11893
Othser currant &ssats 51,675 28317 8,756 B 661 11,544 4415
Curen assets 64,915 72057 B,850 101 24,205 36308
Maon-curment asseta 34,633 40,943 5,787 B2 17,008 16,043
Anancial liaksl ties, axchming tradz and

ofher payubles and provisiens {3,683} {1535 {4,720) {2,253 - -
Cither curant lsbiteg (36,391 {51.856) {4,057] 8,71 {22,867 (35,805
Curmen kabites (42,054 (53.521) {6,777] k] (22,85T) (35.695]
Non-cumant liabibes 16,042) {8.855) 12,354) (2.536) {1620) (1.607
Hon-contraling inleresis {6,0a4) [5,657) s - - -
Equity attriitable ko cwness of the parant 45,350 45,267 1,506 4258 16,726 16,648

—_— e — — e —

Faconcilalion to the Group's nlerest

n the joint verfure:
Fraperion of tha Group's ownership % 50% L 5% B 5%
Groug's shine ol nul essuls of the jonl

wenlum, eachiing goodwil 26TR prdie ] 1,753 2128 B363 B35
Adusimerts 5} = i = i |
Carrying amount of ihe invesiment 22,504 22838 1,782 2128 B35T B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Tha Todowing tabie Tlustrates the summarnised fnancial information of 1% materisl joint ventures including OFL,
DPCA and DHAC, adjusted lor any diferences in accounting policies and resenciied 1o the carying amount in
the Bnancisl sistements lcontinuad);

DFL DPCA DHAC

2024 023 2024 2023 024 2023
AMB millien RME miion BMB million AME milon AMEB million BME rmilian

Ripvariig TE.56T 90,140 6,194 8.371 56,928 88,457
Inberest incarme 553 1,084 1 i1 136 116
Depreciation and
armorisation {5.174) [4,645) 1,167) {1,136) {1,575) 11.503)
Intereal BNpansas L) 1178} 1176) (206 - -
Tax 323) 202} i - (141) (345)
Prafitf{ioss) for the year 661 394 751) (1,253 661 1,328
CHher comprenenslve
e 37) B3 - = - =
Taotel comprehenaive incoma 624 447 [761) (1,263) 661 1,326
Mon-contreling interests {494 {305} - - - =
Comprenensive Incoma
Attributable to Sharaholders
ol the Parent Company 130 138 751) 1,263) 661 1,326
Dividend necatved - 1,867 - — 287 522
———— — — —  ———
Tha fofowing table llustrales the aggregals financial infarmation of the Group's joint venturas thal ara nol
indivichaniy matarial;
2024 2023
RAME miilion BME miltion
{Restated)
Stara of thi joent vinitures' profdt fed the yoear 473 460
Sharg of the joint vonfures’ other comprahanse iNcome [4) 2
Share of the joanl vwnlunes” lolal comprehansive nooms 468 471
Aggregate carying amount of 1he Group's imvestments

7 1h joint vantures 3,208 5,728
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tho year anded 31 Decamber 2024

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2024 2023
AME million FME milian
{Restated)
Share ol nol assels 16,402 16,611
Partficulars of the material essoclates are as follows:
Parcentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ intarast
registration attributable
Hame and business to the Group  Principal activity
Dangleng Missan Aulo Finance Co.,  PRC/Mainfand China 49.50% Provision of inance servicas
Ld.*

Dongleng Honda Auto Parts Go,, Lid, PRCGMainland China 44,00% Manufacture and sale of
autornotive parts and
compaonents

Manjing Linghang Equaty Investment  PRCG/Mainéand China 16.38% Equity investmenl

Parirarship

' Sino-foraign aquity joirt veriure

This above agsociatos aro diresly hold by tha Company.

Tne &bove takle Bsis the associates of tne Compaeny which. in the opinion of the direclorns, pancipally affected
thee reesuilis for thie yoar or formed & substantlal portion of the net assets of the Group, To ghve detalis of other
assocales wolld, i 1he opinlon of tha deeston, rosull In particular of axcossive lenglh,

Dongteng Misgsan Auto Finance Co,, L1d,, which is congidersd a matenal asscoate of the Group, 1S @ strategic

pariner al the Group engaged in Ihe proviskon of linance services and is accounted for under 1he aquity
mathad.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

T lollewing tabée ilustrates the summansed financial informaton of Donglang Messan Auo Firance Co,, Lid,,
acfusted for any differences in ascounting policies and recenciled to fhe camyng amount |n the conscliidated

financial staterments:
Dongfeng Nissan Aute Finance Co., Ltd,
2024 2033
AME million RME milicn
Curront aa3mls 1,816 g2
Nen-cument assels, excluding poddwil 28,430 33623
Geoadwill an acquisition of the associate - =
Current kabilies {5,132) 1458)
Nor-cliftant kabiktes 8, 264) {16,036}
Nt pesarg 16,850 Pk 2|

Reconciiston 1o the Group's interest in the associate:
Proporiion of the Group's ownership 48.50% 48,50%

Group's share of net assete of the associate, excluding goodwil B.341 10,381
Goodwill on acquisition (ess cumudative impairment) - =
Adjustments 493 493
Garrying amaount of the investment 8,834 10,584
Revanue 2,555 3,403
Prof for (he year a8 1632
Cribwr comprahansna incema = -
Total comprehenaive incame for tha yaar 855 1632
Divadend racahved 2475 -
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‘yoar anded 31

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Tha following table Blustirates the aggregate financial information of the Group®s associales thal are not

irndivichunity matarial:
2024 2023
AME million FNE mmifion
{Restaled)
" Share of the aszociates’ proft for the year 248 -
Share of the associalea” 1o7al comprehenalve INcome 246 -
Aggregate carmying ameunt of the Group's imestments in the assoclzles 7,568 5,727
21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2004 2023
Notg RME million MG millice
(Restated]
Leans and recaivables from financing services 25{a) 25,620 31,274

Mancalory raserve deposils with
the Pecpie’s Bank of China (the “PBOCT) 4,388 4,024
Dihars 1,888 1,252
Tatal 31,906 37,450
e — —
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22. INVENTORIES

2024 2023

RME mitfian RME rmilian

{Restated)

Row matoriats 1,810 2428
Wark i progress. 788 1,008
Finished goods 12,793 11,296
Tatal 1531 14,432

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Aragaing analysis of the trads recaivabies as at the end of the reporting padiod, based on the tima of revanue
recognibon and net of lcas allowance, -8 as follows:

2024 2023

RMB million FrEE million

(Rastated)

Wilhin 1 year 8,785 5,489
1102 yoars o7 1,888
Z 103 yoars 1,531 818
Ovver 3 yoars 3,120 3211
14,353 11,014

Less: axpected crodil losses 1,841 2,240

Tatal 12,412 8,774
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES ([CONTINUED)

2024
Gross amount Provislon for Impalrment
RAMB million  Percentage RMB million Provision rate  RMB million
%) %)
Impairmgnt basod on
Imelivichus’ assessment 5,863 40.8 1,647 28.1 4,218
Impabrmgnt basod on
colieciive assassment by
craddit riak partfolio 8,490 58.2 204 3.5 8,196
Tatal 14,353 100 1,941 13,5 12,412
——— - —  ————— . —— ————
2023
Gross amourt Provision for impaimmeant
RME milhan Percentage BB mian  Provision mio RME milian
) %)}
Impairmant based on
imdividua’ assessmant &307 E7.3 1,959 1.1 4,348
lmpagirmmenl Badsad on
cofactive assassmant by
credil risk portfolio 4,707 42,7 281 8.0 4,426
Tatal 11,014 100 2240 203 8,774
— — — E— —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Trada recervablas wilh provisson for bad cebl based on ndviousl assessment are shown as follows:

2024
Provision far
Gross amount impairment  Provision rate Basis of provision

AME miliion RMB million (%)
Custarmes 1 3419 388 114 Individunl assassmant
Customes 2 498 493 820 Individual assessment
Customas 3 106 i2 1.2 Individual assesameant
Cugtamas 4 101 - - Individual aseassmant
Custamer 5 a1 = - Individual assesamant
Ohers 1,658 754 45.5 Individual assessment
Tatal 5,863 1,647 281
2023

Prawvsion for
Gross amoun Impairmant Provision rate Basis of provision
M g MG o et

Custamer 1 AETD 581 183 Incinvidual assessmant
Customar 2 B35 493 92.2 Incividual assessmant
Customer 3 106 12 11.3 Incivichanl assessment
Customaor 4 102 5 48  Indvidual assessment
Custorme: 5 Bt - - Inctvidhual assessment
Oharg 1,913 BGE 45,4 Incividual assessrmant

Tatal 6,307 1,959 a1
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‘yoar anded 31

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES ([CONTINUED)

Trada recervablas with provisson for bad cebl based on coliective assassmant are shown as follows:

2024
Gross Provision for
amount impairment Provision rate
RME miifion RMB milfion %)
Wdithin 1 yoar 7,683 T4 10
1 1o 2 yeers 640 B 13.1
410 3 yenrs TEB 57 Ti.1
Ower 3 yaars T8 T8 100.0
Tatal 8,480 na
2023
Gross Prowision for
amaount imairment Provision rate
AME il RMEB rribart %)
Within 1 yaar 4,232 20 o7
1 lo 2 yeurs 244 32 131
2 1o 3 yaars 40 28 72.5
Orvar 3 yaars 191 191 100.0

Tatal 4,707 81
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Trada recervablas wilth provisson for impairment on collactive assessment and shown as foliows: ([conlnusd)

T movemenis in the loss allowance for impalrment of trade recelvebles are as tollows:

2024 2023

RMBE mitfion RME rmilion

(Raslated)

Al beginmng af yoar 2,240 2,348
Impakment losges of rads receivabiles {B3) {106}
Amourt written ofl as uncollactibls {216) 3}
At end of yaar 1,941 2240

As at 31 December 2024, trade recalvables of the top five customsars are shown as follows:

Pascnnlags of
tha closing

Closing  batance of trade

balancs racaivaias

RMB million %)

Cuslomes A 3,418 23,82
Custarmas B £33 an
Cuslomar G 488 347
Customes D are 2.58
Custameas E 366 248
Tatal 5,178 3607
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24, BILLS RECEIVABLE

Tha bils recanvabio of tha Group are as folows:

2024 gn2a

RMB miilion RME milian

{Rosialed)

Berk bils recaivable 4,388 T.am
Commpreisl bilis recoivabio 410 33

Tatal 4,798 7,304

25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVAELES AND OTHER ASSETS

2024 2023

Motg RME miflton RME milion

{Rastated]

Prapayments 2,708 1,807
Deposits and other receivablas: 5,831 B2
Loans and recalvaibles fram financing services {a] 31,742 azzar
Tatal 40,282 40,518
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25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) The loans and receivables from financing services are analysed as follows:

2024 gn2a

RMB miilion RME milian

{Rosialed)

Gross Ipans and recaivables from financing sendces 58,630 BT 346
Legs: impairmant provison {2, 26E) {2,776}
57,3682 64,571

Lesa: cument partion 31,742 332ar

Man-current gortion 25,620 31,274
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‘yoar anded 31

26. BALANCES WITH JOINT VENTURES

Amounts due from joint ventures:

2024 gn2a

Noila RMB miilion RME milian

(Rostatod)

Dividends recelvable from joint veniures 07 573
interpst-baaring loans to jsint venlues 15 -
Trade recenvables 217 1a7
Dihers el T20 510
Tatal 1,300 1,280
2024 2023

AME miliion BME milion

(Raslatled)

Within 1 year 1,267 1,228
1o 2 pears ae 48
2 10 3 yaars 25 28
Crer 3 years 137 147
1,468 1,452

Less: provision for impasman! 159 172

Tatal 1,309 1,280
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26. BALANCES WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Amounts due to joint venturas:

2024 gn2a
Matag: RMB miilion RME milian
{Rostated)

Due to joint vertures
Cash deposits In OFF (o 13,807 13,220
Cihers fa} 10,748 7,283
Total 24,556 20,513
2024 2023
(Rastated)
Within 1 year 20,960 17,508
1 to 2 yoars 297 2,453
2103 years 810 s10
v 3 yaars 48 a1
Total 24,556 20,513

MNetas

{1} Othérs duis Iremita jeinl vantumes & Lnsecuisd, inlehesl-fee ohd have no fooed lanms of npayirn.

b Cash deposits ploced by joint venkiced in DFF, n aubaidiary 6 the Compamy inuckad in the provsisn ol ikaming
services, baar intérast &l the prevalling sanings mteresd rale publsfea by the PBOC, The deposils an unsecured
And hirvie 0 Kued tarire of payrment,
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27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
2024 2023
RMB miiflan EME milian
(Ratatod)
Mor-current:
Listid neuety iInvmstmants, at falr valus 4,682 8182
Stallantis K.Y, Slafantis")
Faurecia 253 523
Unlisted aquity investmants. at far valse 120 193
5,055 &5998
Current:
B recenabde iIncluded in fnancial assais a1 far value through
ather comprahansie income 4,135 9,248

Total 9,190 18,246

The above equity investments wana imevocably dessgnated at fair valug through ather comprenensgive Income as
the Group considers these Invesiments 1o be strategle in nature.

The Group held 49,223,907 shares of Stellantis &t 31 December 2024, The Group is unable 1o divectly
participate in or exerciss significant influsnce over the fingncial and operating decisions of Stellantis and hence
thee rsgstmant ks acesunted for as finrancial assets at falr value through ol comprehensive incoms,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

2024 2023
RME mitfian RME rmilian
{Restated)
Cagh and bork balancos 44,924 68,970
Time desosils 35,343 24,544
Subtotal 80,267 B3,514
Less: Plodged bank balances as stated and time depasis for
securing genensl banking facilites {4,414) {4,158}
Cash and bank deposits in the conscidated siatament of financial
position 75,853 79,355
Less: Mon-pledged time deposits with ongingl maturity of ovar three
months when acquired |28,870) {6,902}

Cash and cash equivalenis as siated in the statarment of cash flows 46,963 72453

Al the end of the reporling petiod, the cash and bank balances of the Group denomiratec in Renminbi FRAMBT)
amourted to AMBBD,267 millien (2023: AMES3,514 million], The RMB s not fresly convertible inte olher
cuitoncies, howeved, undir Mainland China's Forelgn Exchangs Conlral Regulations and Adrinlstration of
Seftlamenl, and Sala and Faymeni of Foraign Exchanga Reguiations; the Group is permitted to exchangs AMB
for oihar currencies through banks authorsed 1o conduct Tomign axchangs business.

Cash at banks earns iInarest at foaling rates basad on daily bank deposit rates. Shoft Team time depasits
arn made lor varying pariads of batwaan one day and thres months depanding on the immadate cash

reguirgments of the Group, and earn intorest at the rosgective short torm e doposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposils are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recant history of defaull.
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29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 2023

RME mitfian RME rmilian

IRestated)

Structural depasats, ot o volue 14,807 14,590
Ecuty sacurities, at falr valus 1,772 1,669

Tatal 16,579 16,568

Tha above equity invesiments were classified as financial assats at lair value through profit or loss as they
woare hald for trading.

30. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
RME milllon BME rrilian
Izsued and fully paid;
5.760.568,000 (2023: 5.760.388,000)
Demastic Shares of AMB1 .00 sach 5,780 5,760
2.492.200,000 (2023: 2.641,564.000)
H Shares of AMB1.00 each 2,493 2542
Tatal 8,253 5,302
E——— —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

30. SHARE CAPITAL [CONTINUED)

A summary of movemants in the Company's share cagital is as folows:

Humber af Share

shares in issus eapital

FME rmilian BME rmiilion

At 1 Jenuary 2023 8,616 8516
Shares cancelstion {314) {314}
A1 31 Decembar 2023 and 1 January 2024 B, 302 8,302
Shares cencalation (45} (49}
Al 31 December 2024 8,253 8,253
#2023 Incroasa Dacraase 2024

AME o AME mifion  AMB milion  AMB milion

Treasury shares 78 T (149) -

During the year, the Company repurchased 27 490,000 (2023:313.092,000 of ts share on 1he Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for & total consideration of AMBT 1 mikon (20:23: AMBOES million),

Duning the year, the Company canceled 48,664,000 (20E3:313,866,000] repurchasac shares, rasulting in a
decrease in share capital of AMB 148 million [2023:AMBS14 million) and capital reserve of RMB100 mamkion
(2025-RMBEBES milion).

31. RESERVES

Tha amourvts of the Group®s reservos and the movemants thergin for the curent and prior years are presentod
I the consolidated stalernent of changes in equity on pages 104 1o 105 of the financial stalements.
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32, INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2024 2023
AME million FME milian
|Restated)
Current
Bark |oans - secuned 11,895 6,237
Gusrantesd nobes - 6,193
Unsacured natas (mare LI 2,008 -
Assel - backed secunly loans - 16
Orhat lpans — unmsecured jrols ¢ 22,063 22,008
Total - current 36,056 34,454
Hon-current
Bank [nans — secuned 16,863 26518
Assat - backed secunty oans nofe af 1,734 -
Unsecured notes - 2,000
Tatal - non-current 18,587 28,518
Tetal 54,653 62,972
The eftective inferast rates and maturities of the borrewings are as follows:
2024 2023
Effective Effectiva
interest rate Maturity inlarest rate Maturity
™) (%) [Fesinted) (Rt}
Bark loans 1.95-3.95 20262029 2.1-4.85 2024-2028
Guarantsgd nobes - - 0425 2024
Unsacunid nates 3.00 2025 3.00 2025
Agsal-backed secuily loans 1.78 2027 2,80 2024
Dihar loans 0.05-3.5 2025 0.05-2.25 x0ea
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32, INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Tha carrying amounts of berrowings are cenominaled n Ne folowsng curmencias:

2024 gn2a

RMB miilion RME milian

{Restated)

RMB 54,653 67,275
EUR - 5,547
Tatal 54,653 62,972

Ar analysis of the carmying amounts of borrowings by type of interest rate Is as follows:

2024 2023

AME mition BB milian

{Restated)

Fizxed interast rafo 37,383 43,343
Variable interest rate 17,270 19,829

Tatal 54,653 §2,972
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tho year anded 31 Decamber 2024

32, INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Aranalysis of the carrang amaunis of borrowings by type of interas] rate is as follows: (contrued)

2024 2025
RMB millton FRME milan
{Rostated)
Aralysad info:
Bank loans repayable:
Withn one year ar on demand 11,895 6,237
i e firs) fo second year 13,282 9,742
in the sacond io &tth years, inclusive 3,581 16,/ 76
Subtetal 28,758 32,756
MNotas repayable and asset-backed security inans:
Within ane year or on damand 2,008 6,208
in the first to second year 1,734 2,000
Subtotal 3,832 8,208
Other borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on damand 22,063 22,008
Tatal 54,653 62972
— ——
MNates:

[E1 The assat-bDacked sacurily (ARS) loan wilth fixad iMareat rates wede pubdizly issued in the amourt ol AME? 50
millan, The ARE loan bear inferast At a mta ol 1.75% par arnum, inferest s payabie mandhly, As of 31 December
2024, the outstanding peinciple of the ABS loan was AME!. 734 millon.

[} The unsacured nofes ware publcly issued in the amound of AMB2.000 mikon with matsity of 3 years. Tha nates
baar mtarest at a mate of 3,00% par anmum. Inlsests on the nobes are payable annualy. The rotes are 1sted on The
Shanghal 5%ock Exchange,

[ Othar loang mainly epresenied cish deposils pliced by DFM, 85 subsidimies, associales and jonl venhees
amounting o AMB12,325 millon 2023 AMEB1 1,383 million] and cthar unredated third partes in OFF, a subsidiary of

the Group which s involved in tha provision of financing senices, Theoe loans basr infarest at 1he prevaling market
rate publishad by the PEOC,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

33. PROVISION
Environmantal Warranty

restoration costs provisions Total

AME milian FME milian FME million

A1 1 donuary 2024 [restated) a3 2.921 2,954
Additicnal proision - BFT BFT
Amourts utiisad during the year L] 1355} {823}

Al 31 December 2024 23 2,800 2,832
Portion classified as current liabilities - B4T 847

Hon-current portion 23 1,862 1,985

{a) Environmental restoration cosis
In accordance with the provalling rogulations In the PR, the Group is reguired to restore to the original
condition of the land on which s production plants are located. The directors have estimated and
provided for the expected casts for rastoration af the land,

(B} Warranty provisions
Thi Gréup provides warranties o cerlin putomative produsls and undertaxes e abligation 10 repair
ar raplace items thal fail 1o perlorm satisfactonly. The amount of provisions Tor produect warranties

iz astmated based on the saes volume and past experience of the level of rapaics and refurrs. The
aslimation is reviiwod on an ongoing basis and is revised when appropriabe,
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34, GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Tha movaments of the governmant grants related o assols are analysed as folows:

FME million

IReatated)

Al 1 Jenuary 2023 2499
Raecoved duing the year 7B
Reoognised ns other incame during the year (377}
A1 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 2,198
Recawved duing the year 158
Recognised as other income during the year (523}
A1 31 December 2024 1,833
—

35. TRADE PAYABLES

Ar ageing analysis of 1he trade payables 2% at tha end of the reparting period, bazed on the invoice date, is as

follows:
2024 2023
AMB million FAAE milian
[Restated)
Wilhin 1 year 25,513 268,235
118 2 yoarg TBE B18
2103 yorrs T3 138
ever 3 yedrs 224 175
Tatal 26,505 27,164

Inchuded in the irade payathes ane trads payobles of RMB326 millon [2023: AMB18T millon) due o associates
which ane repayable within 80 days, with credit terms similar to thoss oflered by the associates to thair major
customers.

The frada peyables are non-interast-beanng and are normaly sattied on 60-day terma.
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36. BILLS PAYABLE

T maturity profla of the bils payable is as follows:

2024 2023

RMB miilion RME milian
{Restatod)

Berk accepiance 20,568 29,283
Trade acceptance a7 251
Tatal 30,005 29,534
37. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2024 2023

RME miffion AME milian
{Restated)

Advances from customers 50 40
Accruad salaries, wages and benaliis l.'ﬂé- 2,546
Othar payables 17,841 15,919
Tatal 20,704 18,505

206 Dongleng Motor Group Company Limited

285/327



38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2024

At 1 January 2024

Changes from financing cash fows
Hew Inases

Faralgn exchangs movamant
Disposats

Interast axpense

Matured factoring loan

At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2023

Changes fom financing cash Bowe
News laasas

Foraign oxchange movament
Disposals

Interest axponse

Ai 31 Decembaer 2023

EDINETOOOO
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Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

Bank and Loase
other loans liabilities
AME miillon RMEB miilion
40,964 2,168

(B, 348) (576)

- 645

103} -

= (aT)

- 120

T8 s

32,500 2970
Bank and Lease
ol Ioans lakbilities.
ARG milion B rmillicn
(Rastated) [Restated)
38,720 2,238
1,907 (425}

- 460

3T -

- {218}

- 113

40,564 2,168
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

b}  Total cash outflow for leases

Tha total cash autfow lor laases ncuded n he statement ol cash Bws |5 ag follows:

2024 2023

RMB million B millian

(Raatated)

Within operating actiilies 412 258
Within financing activities 576 425

Total ORE T3

39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Datals of the Group's subsidianes that have matarial non-contralling interests ane S8t out below:

2024 2023

Parcontage of eouity intaras) hald by non-contraling intarasts:
DFCY 45% 45%
Dongleng Liug 25% 25%
DPCS 50% 50%
2024 2023
AMB miflon RA4E million

Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling inferests:

DFCY {593) {1,468}
Dongleng Liugl {145 (280}
DPCS {377) {626}

Accumulated balances of non-contraling imerasts at he

reporiing date:

DFCY 3,487 3923

Donglang Livdgi 1,177 1,230

DPCS 14.580) {4,203}
e — - —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1he year anded 31 Docember 2024

39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Tha fetowing tables lusirate the summansed Bnancial miamation of he abowe subsidades, The amounts
disclosed arg batore amy inber-company elminations.

Summarised statement of financial position

31 Decembear 2024
Current  Non-current Total Current  Nan-current Total
assals assels assels [absilities liabilities linbilitles

RME milion  RMB milion RMB mililan  AMEB milion  AMB million  BMB millfon

DRCY 2,754 11,038 33,782 24,258 2,045 26,288

Dongtang Liugl 0,184 5,268 14,483 8,619 are o847

OFCS ™ ford B8 0,867 bl Bara
31 Decamber 2023

Cumrent  Mon-current Total Currert  Mon-cummant Totad

azzals assals assets iabildies liabiitas nabildies

DRCY 26,339 11,380 29 26,485 2.182 28 677
Dongizng Liugl 10.785 5,105 15,830 10,375 517 10882
OFCS 1.006 4 1.046 0333 118 0452

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Faor tha year ended 31 December 1024

Total
Tatal Loss for  comprehensive
Revenue oIpEnGes the year loss for the year

RME millon RME million  RME million AME million

DFCV a0z 8,495 11,293) (1,335)
Dengleng Liug 15,052 15,647 [5%5) (584)
OFCS 4,568 5,820 754} (754
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

39. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income (continued)

Foof thi yaar enchad 31 Docambar 2023

Tetnd
Tatal Logs lor compeahensve
e BEPENIES the year  loss for the year

AME rrlion FAAME maltlon FAME miion RS million

DECV 73 anea (3,287} 3,250
Dongleng Liugi 14,304 15,2563 (343 fB58y
DFCsS 6523 7,760 11,265 (1,257}

Summarised statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Net cash flows Mal cash MNetcash flows  Net increasa/
from/jused Inj flows from  (used in)/from  [decresse) in
opaerating Inwesting finanzing cash and cash
activities activities activitles equivolents

AME milfion RME milifon RME oo AME milion

OFCy 1218 [616] [162) 24
Dangéeng Liug [1,241) (18] (4 (1,435
OFCS 134 L 123 10
For the wear ended 31 Decamber 2023

Mal cath Nows Wl cash  Net cash fiows MNet increase!

from/usad i wsad In from {iesad i) from (chacreass] in

oparating imastng financng  cash and cash

actiities actvities activities equralents

RME milion FRME miliion RME milian RME milion

OFCY 2.8H 1) rals] 1270
Duongtarsg Lugi (5741 (258 211 (1.043
DFCS i1 - B3 {9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year anded 31 Decambaer 2024

40. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 28 January 2024, Dongleng Changaing Science and Technology Co., Lid. ("Dongleng Changxing”) {a
ron-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and DFM entered info an equilty franséer agresment, pursuant
to which Donglang Changxing scquired 100% equity Interesis In Chuangge Financzial Leasing Co., Lid,
{"Chuangge Financial Leasing') frarm DEM ot o consideration of AMB1, 122 milan, The equity transtor f
Chuangge Financiol Leasng was completod in March 2024 and Chuangge Fironc:al Loasing Becameo a
subsidary of tha Group thersafter,

Chuargge Fmancial Leasng and the Group are bath under contral of DEM bofore and after the eouity transier,
Tha pooling of interesis mathod was applied 10 socount for the business combination under comman control,
Thie assets and lakdlities of Chuangge Financal Lesging are relfecled by the Group wsag Dheir respedctive
carrying emounts as recognisad by DFM, and the diference betseen the camdng amounts of the net assets
ef Chuangge Finence Lessing a3 recogrdsad by DFM and tha purchase congidaration paio are credited to the
Group's reserve. The comparalive amaunts in the Growp’s cansclidated financial slatements have alss baan
restated as a regull of the businress combnalion wndar COMmMmen conbral,

41. COMMITMENTS

(a} The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end of the reporting

period:
2024 2023
RMB mition RME milion
(\Restated)
Buildings, plant and machinery 2,568 3416
— ——————)

(B} The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced as at 31
December 2024, The future lease payments for these non-cancellable lease
contracts are AMB321 million due within one year, AMB960 million due in the second
to fifth years, inclusive and RMB2,187 million due after five years,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, in addition 1o thesa discloged alsawhens in the financial statemants, the Group had the
fallgwing significant transacticns with ils related parties:

(a) Transactions with DFM, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group's
joint ventures and associates, non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and
their subsidiaries and subsidiaries” joint venture

2024 2023
AME militon FME midlion
IRestated)
Purchagas of aulomolive parta/raw materials from and

chargas of royally lees by:
Subsidiares’ joint veniures T.126 8,081
Jaoint venturas 5,320 5,388
Associates 1,577 BB
DFM. s subsidianes, associates and jont veniungs 868 1,152

14,891 16,518

Purchasas of automotive fram:

Joint ventures 5,826 B.843

Associates 1.528 1,187

DFM, iis subsidiaries, associates and joind veniures 14 4
Mon-controling equity holders of a subsidiary and their

subsidiaries. - 4

7,368 9,308

——

Purchases af lems of propedy, plant and equipment and

intangible assets tram:
Jaint ventures 1,863 1,044
CHFM. s sulbnidiancs, associstes and joint vonjures 280 366
Non-conlraling squity holders of & subsidiany amd thadr

subsidiaries - i)
Agsociates - 4

2,143 1,512
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year anded 31 Decambaer 2024

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with DFM, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group's
joint ventures and associates, non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and
their subsidiaries and subsidiaries’ joint venture [continued)

2024 <023
RMBE mitfion RME rmilion
(Restated)
Services lees cherged by:
DFM. A3 subgidienes, associales and joind veniures 2,001 1,316
Joint venturas 668 589
Asgoclates B8 38
Subsidianes’ oint vaniures 1 1
Non-controling equity holders of a subsidiany and s
subsidiaries 2 a
2678 1,846
Gaes of aulomotive parisitaw materials and income for rovalty
Teas frome
Joint ventures 1,005 2267
Assooiales 334 4449
Subsidiaries’ loint vaniures Fahl 164
DFMA. it subsidiaries, associates and joint veniures B5 Ta
Mon-controling equity holders of a subsidiary and their
subsidiaries. - 2
2,665 2,861
E—
Sl of atomotive to:
Jaint ventures 542 251
Associates 448 72
Nan-caniroling equiy holdors of a subsidiary and {heir
Subizadianies - 3
DFRA, s subgidinries, associnled and joind vaniungs - 1
990 327
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For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

EDINETOOOO
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Transactions with DFM, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group's
joint ventures and associates, non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and
their subsidiaries and subsidiaries’ joint venture (continued)

Income frem provision of serices to:
Jaint ventures
DFMA. s subsidianes, associales and joind venlures
Associates
Subsidiares’ joint vaniures
MNon-conlroling sharsholders ol a sulsidiany and their
subsidiaries

Intarest expense charged by:
DFM, iis subsidiaries, associates and joint veniures
Jaint vantures
Associates
Subsidinries” joint vaniures
Nan-coniralbng equity holders of a subsidiany and thes
subsidianien

Interest income from:
Joint venturas
DFMA. fis substdianes, associates and joint veniures
Subsidianes’ joint vaniures
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2024 2023
RAME milfon BME rmilion
IRestated)

806 227
267 115
14 16
36 ;|

1 =
1,124 385
180 235
107 212
16 ig

1 1

- 3
J14 470
(1] Ta
a3 a

1 —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

For 1 yoar anded 31 December 2024

(@) Transactions with DFM, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group's
joint ventures and associates, non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and
their subsidiaries and subsidiaries’ joint venture (continued)

Fes and commission income fram:
Joint veniures
OFM. = subsidianes, associales and joind vaniums

Memagemsant diapatch fee recalvad from joint veniures

2024
RMB miflion

2023
AME milian
‘Restated)

‘:ﬂ Y

%)
i
= -~ [

174

Thesa transactions were conowsied in acoordance with the tesms and condiions agreed batween the

Group and 15 relaled parbes

(B} Outstanding balances with related parties

Racehables from related parties included in rade recevables:
Assaciales
Naf -goflraling aquily holders of o subsidiany and thod
subsidiaries
DFM. s subsidianes, assocales and jor vaniurs

294/327

2024 2023

RMB million BME millian
\Rastated)

189 23

101 114

1 48

81 I35
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b} Outstanding balances with related parties (continuad]

2024 gn2a
RMB miilion RME milian
{Restated)
Recetvables from related parties included in prepayments,
depasits, alhes recelvablo Mote 2
DFM, ita subsidiones, associates ond joind veniunea 354 220
Associates 49 50
Non-conirolling sharshelders of a sulbsidiany and thisk
gubsidiaries -
403 283
Payablas fo related parfias included in trads paysbles:
DFMA. s subsidianies, associatles and joint vantures 517 585
Associates 25 187
Mon-controling equity holders of a subsidiary and thedr
subsidiaries B B
B4T T8a
Payablas 10 edated paries ncuded in olher payeblas and
accruals and conlract llabilibes:
DFMA. its subsidianes, associates and [oint veniunes 260 258
Associales 19 27
Non-contralling equity holders of 4 subsidiary and ther
subsidiaries -3 =
281 286
Payablas fo DFM, its subaidiaries, associates and jont
vanturas inciuded in 'sasa Lablifes: 1,327 1,423
E———— —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b} Outstanding balances with related parties (continuad]

2024 2023
RMB millfon BME milion
{Restated)
Payahles io related parbes nciuded in interesi-baaring
barrowings (Mete 1]:
DFM, it subsidinries, associates and jond veniunga 12,326 11,393
Associates 21 241

12,348 12,334

Motel:  For the depost-taking from the aforesaid related parties, the intarest ries was 0.35% to 3.5% per annum.
The depcsaits are unsecined and have no fwed terms ol repayment.

Noted © For the loans granted [o afcresakd ralated panies, e nterest rates was 2% to 4. 35% por annum. Tha
aans e unsecurad win the anginal terms within 1 1o 3 years.

(e} Compensation of key management porsonnel of the Group

2024 2023

RMB thousand AME throvusand

(Rastatad)

Short-tarm amployes benelits 6,030 8,058
Past-amployiment bonelits 492 353
Tolal compansation paid to ey managoemaen! parsonnal 6,522 .41
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Tha carryng amounts of sach of tha categories of financial instruments as al the end of the reporting panod
arg as follows:

Financial assets

2024 2023
AME milllon FME milian
Rastated)
Financial assels at amortised cost
Oritar non-curmdni assets 31,806 47450
Trada recehvables 12,412 B77d
Biia recefvabie 4,788 7.304
Fimancial asse1s Included in prepayments, deposits and other
recelvablas 40,282 40,5168
Diua from joint vaniures 1,300 1,360
Pecged bank balances and time deposits 4,414 4,159
Cash and cash af benk deposits 75,853 79,355
Financlal assets at falr value through other comprehensive
Ineome
Equuity securlties included i financial assels al far value through
ather comprehensive ncome 5,055 8,998
Bits recenvable included in financial assais at falr value through
other comprahansive income 4,135 8,248
Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,578 16,5668
Tatal 196,743 213,852
— —————
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

2024 2023
AMAE millton BAME millian
{Restated)

Liabllities at amortised cost
Trade payables 26,505 27164
B payable 30,006 29,534
DOiner payables 16,560 14,358
Dua to |esnt ventures 24,556 20,513
interaat-baaring bank and othar borowings 54,653 62972
Gither lorg term liabllibes. 510 137
Lease kaDiiilies 2,270 2,168
Tatal 155,148 156,847

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Managemen! nas assessed that the falr values of cash ard cash depasits, pledged bank balances and time
deposils, trado and blls recolvablo at amortised cosl, trade and bills pavablo, other recehablos and othor
non-current assets, olher payables and ather long-term liabilities, and amounts due fromao joint ventures
approkimabe 1o their carming amounts langaly dua 10 the shorl-term maturities of hese Instrumants, The nen-
current interest-bearing bank and ofher berrowing approximate fo thelr camying amounts due to the Boating
Inlerest rate,

The Group's tinance department headed by [he Tinance manager is responsible for determnng the policies
and procedures for the fair valus measwremant of inancial instrumants. The finance manager reporis directly
te it chwel financial olficer and the oudt commitios. Al coch raporting date, the Snence departmant analyses
1 MovEmEnls in the values of Tinancial insrumants and oelermines 1% major inputs apohed in the valsation,
Tha valuation iz reviewad and approved by the chiad financial officar. Tha valuation process and resulte are
discussod with the Audit and Risk Management Committoe twice a year lor intedm and arnual financial
risporting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

44, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Tha tar values of the inancial essets and kebikbes are included @ the amount al wiech the instrament could
be exchanged in a current ransachon betwesn wiling parties, other than i 8 lorced or liquidabion sake, The
fallewing mathods and assumplions wan used 16 aslmala tha faif valuas:

The fair va'ues of Ested equity investments are basad on quoted market prices, The falr valugs of unlisted
equity Investments fave bean estimated using a market-based valuation techniqua based an assumptions
that arg mot supporiod by cbheorvablo market srices oF rates. The valuation eguines tha sreslors 1o dotaaminag
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and sirategy. and o calculate an
appropriate grice mulliple, such as entamprise value 10 eamings before interest, taxes, cepleciation and
amartigation ("EV/EBITDA®) mulliple and price to sales (*P/S%) multiple, for esch comparable company
Identifisd. The multipla s caleulated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparabla company by an
eamnings measure. The Irading multipke is then discounted for considerations such as iliquidily and size
differences betwesn the comparable companss Dased of COMPaMY-speciiic 1acts and circumstances. The
discounted multiple is applied 1o the comesponding eamings measure of the unisted eguity Investmants
to msadure the falr value, The directors balisve that the estimated fair valuss resuiting from the valuation
techrique, which are recorded in the condensed consoldated statement of financlal position, and the related
changes in tair values, which are recorded 0 ather comprehensive moome, are reascnable, and ihat they were
ihe most appropriate values at the end of the reporing perod,

For the fair value of the unistad eguity Invesimants, structured deposits and bills recedvable at fair value
through athesr comprehanshe income managament has estimated the polential eftect of using reasonably
possibio altomatives as inputs 1o the valuation moded,

Below i5 a sumemary of significent unobservatie nputs 1o the valuation of financial instruments 1ogethar with a
guantitative sensitivity analysés as at 31 December 2024 end 31 December 2023:

Unlisted squity investments:

Valuation Slgnificant
technique unchaervable Input Range  Sensitivity of falr value to the Input
Vahstion muftiples - Aversgs PrS mulltipls 701 5% @1 December 2123: 5%) increase/decreass
of pears {31 December 2023: n mailtiple would result in increase/dacreasa
05710875  intair value by AMBE2.5 milion (31 Decambar
2023 RMBTT millicn|
Discount for lack of 75% 5% (31 December 2023: B%) ncrease/decreass
rrariketamlity (31 Decamber 2023: In discount would resull in decreasefncreass
T0% to 100%)  in fair value by AMES.4 milion (31 Decamibar
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Notes to the ﬁhmﬁlﬁf@tﬂmnﬁt&unﬁnugﬂ)"

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

44, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Unlisted equity investments: (continued)

Tha digeount for ek of markelabdity ropresents the amount af diseount dotafmingd by this Group that maekol
participants would teke into account when pricing the investments,

Fair value hierarchy

The follcwing tables ifestrate the lair value measurement higrarchy of the Group's linancial insiruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As al 31 December 2024

Fair value measurement using

Ouoted prices  Significant  Significant
In active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

Leval 1) fLevel 2) Level 3) Tatal

AME miltion RME miliion RME million RMB miilian

Firancial assets

Financial azeets at ful valus through profil

or bes

Slructured deposils - 14,807 - 14,807

Eaquity secuwities 1167 230 375 1,772
Firancial assets al fair valua through cther

compeehensive Income

Hiiz recaivahis = 4,135 = 4,135

Eauity secwrities 4,835 - 120 5,055
Tolal financial assets 6,102 19,172 498 25,788

2024 Annual Report 229

300/327



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E5974)
Oooooood

44, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

A% 6l 31 Decomber 2023

Fair valug measuneément using
Cuicted pricss Significant Significant
in active cbsanable  UnObSenvaby
Friaaris Irsputs Irypusts
Lol 1) Ll 2 fLartd 34 Tatal

FRME mtian FAME mion FIME mifon S milion

Firancial azsets
Firancial azsets af fair valus through prof
or loss:
Slructured deposils - 14,800 - 14,898
Equity secuwilies 1,176 = 483 1,668
Firancial azsats at fair valus through other
comprehenive incoma
Bilis recefvable = 9,246 - 8,248
Enuity seciriies BEDS - 193 B,908
Total finenctal assets 9,081 24,147 636 34,814
—_— — — —

The Group did nat have amy inancial Babilibes measured al fair value as ai 31 Decambar 2074 ang 2023,

During the yaar, thare warg 2300 hnancal assets transfers out of Leved 3 15 Lovel 2 (2023; Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financal instrumants compnss inerost-beanng bank and othwr borrows, lease liabilities,
cash and cash bank deposits and pledged bank balances and time deposits, The main purpose of these
financisd Instnuments is to ralse finence lor tne Group's opaerations, The Group has various ciher financial assefs
and Eabiilies such % trade and bilils rcalable, tade and bills payabio which arige dractly from it opaeralicng,

The main risks arlsing from e Group's financial nstruments ang inerest rate rsk, Toreigh curency risk, credi
reak and liguidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for menaging sach of thesa risks and
thay are summarisod bolow. The Group's accounting policies in ralation 1o derivatives ore o1 out in note 2.4
fo ther finencial stalements,

Interest rate risk

QOroup's exposure 1o inlerest rate sk jor changes in intersst rates ralates primerily to the group's interest-
bearing bank borrowing with foating infersst rates. Management continuously monitors inderast rate fuctuation
and witl consider further hedging infteres! rate risk should the nesd arisa.

The sensitvily analysis bedow has been delermined based on he exposure (o interest rales lod floating
Imterast-bearing bank borroawings at 1he end of the reparting period assuming the siipulaied changes had
taken place at the baginning of the reportng period and were held constant throughout the reparting period.

The lollowing table demonstrates the sensitvity 1o a reasonably possible chengs in inteses] rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's ioss betore 12x {through the iImpact on floating rete borrowings).

Increasef Increase/[decraase) Increase/|decrease)
(dacroasza) In in loss after tax in loss of equity
basis points 2024 2023 2024 2023

AME milton A8 miton  AMEB million AAEB milion
[Restated)  [Restated)

If interest rale increases 100 173 195 173 196
If Interast rate decreases (100 (173 [196) (173) [196)
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

Thi Busiresses of the Group afe prncipally lacalad in Mainland Chesa. Whils most of the salas of tha Group
ore conducted in AMB, certain of 1he Group™s bormowings wene cenominaled in olher currencies such as Eurg,

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the carrying amounis in BMB equivatent of the Group's
financial assets and franchl liablibes dercminatod In ireign cUfGRCIEE ara SuMmMmansed bolow:

2024 2023

RMB miillon BME milian

JRestated)

Cash and bank balences 4,182 2,347
Trade recevablas 2,376 Baz
Trade payables {117) 271}
Inberesi-Dpaaring bank and olfer borowings - {5,763}
Tatal 6,441 4,145
— —

Fluctualions in tho exchange rates of AMB agains! the loraign currency can affost tho Graup's resulls of
cparalions,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk [continued)

Thia fallewsng table demonstratos the sansithdly al the end af the rapaerting perod 1o & reasonably possbla
change im the EUR and AMB exchange rate, with all ofher varipbles held constant, of the Group's losa (due to
changes in the tair values of monetery assets and llabilities),

Inerease/(dearease) in logas after tax

2024 beluiok ]

AME million BME miien
\Restated)

It AME strengthens against ELIR by 5% 138 108
i ABAB weakens against EUR by 5% {138) {108}

Cradit risk

The cash and bank bafances and time deposits of the Group are mainly deposted with stale-owned banks in
Mainland China, such as Industrial and Commerclal Bank of China Limited, Agncuttural Bank of China Limited,
Barik of China Limited and China Canstruction Bank Corporation,

The Group's Francing senices am prmarily focused on supponing the sale of the commercial and passenger
vahicles of 1he Group. As a conseqguence of theso activities, tha Group s sxposed 10 crodit fsk, which is
menilored and managed based on defined standards, guidalines and procedures. The Group miligates cradi
risk by crocit profection provided by guaranters and by loan collateral such aa vohicles, Sconng systems are
appliod 1o the assessment of the default rsk of rdvicusl customasns, A1 loens end receivibles from financing
senvices are reviewed lor objective evidence of impasrment and classilied based on a fve-tier classiBcalion

systarm,

The Group has credil polickes in place and the exposure 1o credil rigk 1s monitored on an ongoing Dasks. Credit
avalualions are parformod on al customens recuireng cnedit aver & cartain amount, The Group does nol REve a
significant exposure to any individual cusiomar,

Tne carrying amaunt of aacn irancil asser inciuded in These rancial STaEMents represants This Makimum

exposurg of the Group 1o credit rlsk m reation to it financlal aesets, The Group hag no other financial asssls
carrying significant exposure 1o cradil risk and has no signilicant concentration of credi risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ff}on’tinundj

For the year ended 31 Decarrber 2024

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk [continued]
Critevia for fudging significant increase fn crodit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credil risk of the relevant financial instrumerts has increased
significanily sinca tha Initkal recognition al each balance sheal date, Tre Group adopls overdus padad of
more than 90 days o signifcant changas in ona oF made of The lollswing Indicatlods as tho prncipal eriterion
for judging whather the crecit sk nes increasad significantly; matanal adverse changes in tha businass
amvirgnmaent 1o which the debior |5 subject, the debtor's mternal and extemnal ¢redit ratings, and actual or
oxpacind oporating results,

Definition of credil-impaired assels

The Group adopis an overdue perod of more than 90 days as the prencpal criterion for judging whathar credi
impafmant hes ocourred. However, the Group may alsa recognise eredit impalrment in some circumsatances
where intesnal or external information indicates that the confract value cannol be fully recovered withoul
considenng amy credit enhancemant held,

Tha credit impainment on a financial assal may resdlt from the combined affect of multiple events and may rot
recessany be dug to & single entifable event,

Cradit risk exposures

For the credi risk axposures reialec 1o frade receivables, pleasa refer 1o tha disclosure m nobe 23,

Since the Group trades anly with recognized and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collaieral. Concentrations of cradit riss are managed by cuslomer/counterparly. There are no sgnificant

concantratons of credt rsk wilhin the Group aa the cusiomar basa of the Group's trede recaivalbies s widaly
dispersed in different sectors and mdustries.
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Financial Statements (Continued)

Far tho year anded 31 Decarrber 2024

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

This Group's obpective @ 1o mantaln & balance babwesn continlilty of lundng ahd Nodbdty thiough e usb &
inferest-bpanng bank and othar borrowings, and other avalabie sources of financing,

This maturity prafle af the Group's fiasncial labllithes as at the and of the reporting parod, Based an the
conlraciual unsscounted payrnonts, 15 as Tollews:

31 December 2024

Within In the
ane ysar or In the third 1o Beyond

on demand  second year fHih years fhwe years Total
RMEB million RAMBE milion RMB milflan  AMB milllen  AME miilion
Interest-bearing borowings 35,482 15,100 3,933 - 55515
Trade payables 26585 - - L4 26,505
B payaole 30,005 - - - 30,005
Cther payables 16,560 - - - 16,560
Due o point venhures 24 556 - - - 24 556
Lioase ok s 4| 437 523 2187 3,468
Chaar long term habilities - - - 608 608
134,518 15,537 4,456 2,796 157,308

——

2024 Annual Report 227

306/327



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E5974)
Oooooood

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decarmber 2024

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Liguidity risk {continued]
31 Decamber 2023
Within ane Iry
yaar o Ir thia fhirdl to Beyond
ondemand  sscond year fifth years five years Tonal
AMEmiion AME miion  AME mfon  AME mikon  RME miton
{Restated] {Pastates) {Restated) (Pestatod) |Restated)
Interest-Deanng borowings 34,894 11,824 17,661 - 4,378
Trade payables 27,164 - - - 27,164
Bils payable 29,534 - - - 20,534
Oihar payablas 14,383 - - - 14,350
Due 1o poini venlures 20,513 - - - 20,513
Lease iabdfas 332 ke 562 2,306 3532
Othar long term kabilities - 38 112 - 151
125,786 12,1896 18,335 2308 159,832
— — — — —
Capltal management

Tha primary cbiectives of the Group's capitl managemant are 1o saleguard the Group's ablity to continue
as a gong concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios m order te suppart its business and maximise
sharehoiders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes odjustments to it in light of changes in econamis
condilons. To mantain or adjust the capilal structure, the Group may adjusl the dividend payment 1o

shamhaidars, raturn capital 1o sharehaldars o isses new shams. No changas ware made in tha abjectives,
policias or phocasses lof Managng sapltal during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)

Thia Groufy manitors capltal using an assbt-labdity matie, which s total labEties divided by total assats, Tha
aasel-lability ratio as at the and of the reporling perod was as followa:

31 Decembar
2024 2023
RMB millfon BME miltan
|Roetated)
Total asses ‘325,052 335,430
Total labiitias 170,255 175,714
Assat-liability ratia 52.38% 52 .33%

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

i} ©n 9 February 2025, the Company was notifind by its immediate helding company (DFM) that DFM
i5 planning a I'BSII‘I.H'."II.IT"-'IQ [the “Restruciuning” with othe: caniral stale-owned enlerprses. The
Hasliruchaning miry $ad to 4 changa o tha Company’s contralling sharabolder, Ralavant arangements
remain iub]ﬂﬂ =] nacessary proceduras and aporovals from ralevant I'Iﬁlﬂﬂﬂr? autheritias, The
Pesirusturing s not axpecled 6 have material impact 1o 1he businesses of the Grous,

b On 16 January 2025, the Company issued new anargy and inteligant development Figh-growth incustry
sclence and lechnology Innovalion corperaie bends (bond abbroviation: 25 Dangleng K1, code:

242297) on the Shanghai Siock Exchange. The bonds ware publicly issued in the amount af AMB1.6
billicn with & maturity period of 3 years, The bonds bear irlerest al a rale of 1.7% per annam.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
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Informaticn aboul the statemant of financial postion of the Company ol the end of the reporting period is as

fallows:

Hon-current assets
Proparty, plant and egupment
Faght-of-use osseta
Investments in propetes
Intangibie assats
Invastmants in subgidiarias
Investranmts in jont ventures
Imyesbmanis i associates
Othar non-currant assats
Eouity investrmants at fair valus through other
comarehensve mooms

Total mon-current assets

Current assets

Inveniones

Trade recevablas

Bila recewabla

Due from joint vertures

Prepaymeants, other recelvablas and ofher assats

Pladged bank balances

Finencal assets at fair value through orofit or koss

Eouity investments at fair valus through other
comprehensie Nooma

Cash and cash equivalenis.

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
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2024 el
AMB million RME rmulbor
6,633 50048
520 323
4,085 4,217
4,209 3204
46,551 40,524
12,126 12,361
7,550 T34
1,084 48
42 48
82,882 74,287
305 883
1,152 BE6
4 BG6
660 B23
3,925 5,001
156 B
1,173 1,668
618 -
61,280 61,381
69,963 71,567
162,845 145,854
|
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For 1h year anded 31 Decomber 2024
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Informaticn aboul the statemant of firancial postion of the Company al the end of the reporting pefiod is as

fallows: (continued)

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trado paysbles

Lease dabilites

Bals payable

Cortract habilities

Dua to joint venturas

(hher payables and accruals

Provisions

Intereat-baaring bank and oihar barrowings.

Tatal eurrant Nabilitias

HNET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interent-bearing bank and olhar borowings
Lease aabililes

Cihar non-currant liabllites

Provisions

Government grants

Total non-current liabilities

Het asseis

2024 el
AMB million RME rmulbor
4,747 4,403
1 T
1,802 1,478
2,075 B10
311 302
8,036 3,165
208 204
16,657 BATE
33,9457 18,835
36,026 52632
118,908 127.219
14,266 26,866
57 &7

511 4
640 615
1,238 1,493
16,712 29,045
102,196 08,174
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Informaticn aboul the statemant of firancial postion of the Company al the end of the reporting pefiod is as

fallows: (continued)
2024 2023
RMB millfon MG milton
EQUITY
Share capital 8,253 8,302
Treasury shares - T8}
Resarves 13,960 14,102
Retaned profits 79,983 75,848
Total aquity 102,186 08174
— —
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 152,845 145,854

Tha statemont of financial positon of tha Company was appraved by the Board of Directons on 26 March 2025

and was signed an its cehall,
Yang Qing You Zheng
Dhracior Dheacior
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For h year anced 31 December 2024

47. STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Infarmation aboul the statemant of financial postion of the Company al The end al the reporting period is as
{ollows: (continued)

Mota:
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
Capital Treasury Statutery Retained

resarve shares reServes profits Total
FIAS et RS ionr RS malon AWE milon RS il

As at 1 January 3023 4,805 =k 6,980 TE,201 60,873
Tatal comprehensive income for

ey - - - 2,207 2,207
Hepurchass of traasury shares - SE3) - - {983}
Cancelation of shams [B83) ars - - 316
Final 2022 divicdend declared

and paid - - = 1:2,5@| I?,?‘%}
As &t 31 December 2023 4,142 (TH) =R= ] 75,848 BaET2
As al 1 January 2024 4,142 (&) 9,960 75,848 09,872
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - 18 4,548 4,542
Raepurchase of treasury

shares - {71 - - (Al
Cancellation of shares (B9 149 - - 50
Business combination under

coemmon cantral (a7 = - - 37
Imterim 2024 dividend

declared and paid - - - [413) {413)
As at 31 Docamber 2024 4,008 - 8,954 79,943 93,943
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For tha vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Nota: (sontinusd)
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: [continued)
(a) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the Compeny, (15 subsidiaries and assoclates esiablished
in the PRC are roquired to allecate 10% of tholr profits after tax (detesminad undar the PRC Genarally
Accepted Accounting Principles (PRC GAAFT) 1o their reapective staluiony surplus reserves (the “SSA%L.
o allocation to the SSR is reguired after the balance al swch reserve reaches 50% of (he registered
capital of the respective companies. Subject o certain restrechons sef oul i the PRC Company Law,
part ef the S5R may be conwerted o increase share capital, pravided that tha ramaining balence afler
the capitalisation 3 not less than 25% of the registerad capital of the respectve companias,

Pursuant to tha relevant laws and regutations for Sino-foreign joint venture enterarises and the
memorandum and articles of aseociation of the relevent companies, the Group's Sino-foreign joint
venlures are also required 1o make sppropristions of cenain of their profits after tax thereof ta their
enterprise expansion funds and reseryve funds, which are resiricied as 1o use.

(o) Distributable reserves

As et out in nate 12, for dividand distribution purpeses, the Company's distributable prodit i based
on the lower of the net profit after tax as determined undar PRC GAAP and IFRS Accounting standards
{efiowing its restruciuring into a joint atock lirmsted liability company an 12 October 2004, The amounts
that the Company’s subsbdiaries and joini ventures can legally distribute by way ol dividend are
datermned by relerence to thalr pralits as reflected n thar financial statemants prepared in socordanca
wilh PR GAAP, These profits may differ from thoss refectad In these fnancial statemsants. which ars
prapared in accordanca with IFRS Accounting standards.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the net profits after transfers to the S8R can be distibuted
as dividends by the companiss comprising the Group &2 st oul abova.

Under the relevant lews and regulatory requirements, the nal profits of the Group's Sino-foreign joint
vaniures after transfers to the enterprise axpansion fund and the reserve funds cen be distributed as
dividends by the Group's Smno-foreign joinl venlures.

48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The linancial statements were approved and authorsad for Bssue by the board of directors on 26 March 2025,
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